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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE”STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small & mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of WS-SK Target Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRHRES

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual results of WS-SK Target
Group Limited (formerly known as SK Target Group Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 May 2025.

REVIEW

The growth outlook for the global economy remains subject to
downside risks, mainly from further escalation of geopolitical
tensions, heightened volatility in global financial markets and slower
growth momentum in major economies.

The Group has experienced a slight increase in revenue of 2.85%
for the year ended 31 May 2025 when as compared to the revenue
for the year ended 31 May 2024. The revenue generated from the
manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junction boxes
business slightly increased by approximately 0.62%, the other
building materials and services business segment increased by
approximately 26.26%. Following the acquisition on F 3| & JE &
B =4 E R AR A A during the year, the Group has stepped
into e-commerce platform business. The operations of sourcing
services and sale of health supplement products were discontinued
during the year due to change in direction of business strategy
and management has dedicated more resources on development
manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junction boxes
business and other new business.

Due to the present economic conditions, the Group expects a tough
operating environment in the financial year ahead.

The Group is cautiously optimistic about the overall business
prospects, while labour shortage and rise in material cost remains
challenges and pressures to the Group.

The management of the Group is committed to looking for business

opportunities that would generate long-term returns to the
shareholders of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRHRES

PROSPECT

The Group is taking positive steps to maintain the Group’s business
operation and to build sustainable business operation for the Group
in order to maximize the shareholders’ return of the Company.

The Board will continue to monitor the business environment in
Malaysia, Hong Kong and PRC and make appropriate adjustments to
the Group's operations should there be a need.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all shareholders
and Board members for their support and efforts to the Group. |
also express my sincere gratitude to our customers and business
partners for their continued support, as well as to my colleagues and
staffs for all their dedication, loyalty and contribution to the Group.

Loh Swee Keong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 August 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group manufactures and sells precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and precast concrete electrical
junction boxes under our brand of “Target” in Malaysia. The Group's
precast concrete junction boxes are used in (i) telecommunication
and electrical infrastructures upgrade and expansion works; and (ii)
construction projects in Malaysia. They are buried underground to
deter tampering and are used to house and protect a junction with
telecommunication and electrical utility connection and distribution
access points from weather, changing elevation underground and
provide easy access for maintenance.

The Group has been a registered supplier or the approved supplier
of various notable telecommunication companies such as Celcom
Axiata Berhad and Telekom Malaysia (“Telekom”) since 2008 and
the registered supplier of Tenaga National Bhd. (“TNB"), the sole
electric utility company, in Malaysia since 2012. Hence, the Group's
precast concrete junction boxes are used in infrastructure or
construction projects involving telecommunication companies and
TNB.

For the year ended 31 May 2025, the revenue of the Group slightly
increased by approximately 2.85%, the increase is mainly due to the
increase in the revenue of the other building materials and services
business and the contribution from new business.

Moreover, other factors which include labour shortage and
dependency on foreign workers, and the rising production and
transportation costs have exerted pressure on the Group's business
operations. Nevertheless, the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the overall business prospects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue slightly increased from approximately RM30.7 million
for the year ended 31 May 2024 to approximately RM31.6 million
for the year ended 31 May 2025, representing a slightly increase of
approximately 2.85%. Such increase was mainly due to the increase
in the revenue generated from the other building materials and
services business and the contribution from new business.

For the manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junctions
boxes business, the revenue increased by approximately 0.62%,
from approximately RM29.3 million for the year ended 31 May 2024
to approximately RM29.5 million for the year ended 31 May 2025.
The revenue generated from this business segment was steady.

For the other building materials and services business, the revenue
increased by approximately 26.26%, from approximately RM1.4
million for the year ended 31 May 2024 to approximately RM1.8
million for the year ended 31 May 2025. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in transportation income in association with the
increase in sales of larger precast junction boxes.

Following the acquisition on F Y E IEE S Z £ ERE B R A 7
during the year, the Group has stepped into e-commerce platform
business and contributed approximately RM327,000 in revenue.

The sales of health supplements business and the sourcing services
of materials business were discontinued due to change in direction
of business strategy. Management has dedicated more resources on
developing manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junction
boxes business and other business with potential.

Bt %% B B

WA
WABRBE2024F5831HIEFEH307H
BoEBMIEMES E£202545A31HIEF
EHN6EEST @ BBRUIE N 2.85% - B #
AT Z R H A RS MR R AR 7 RS U
AIEINCA R 3T S S B BT o

ERERITESENRERE HEBKK AL
IN#70.62% » BB E 202455 A31 B IEFEEL
V3IABLEHEMEEE2025F5H318 1k
FEHNVSEEST ZEBIBEENK
ANEFFIBIE o

H M SR M R I AR 7 2E T B IR R A 2 2024
FOASMBIEFENIABESTENY
2626% = E = 2025F5 31 HILFEH188H
BB ARAENMDEFERRARBRES
SHEE I RAER WAL N -

AEBRERNWRE RN EIERSZEAE RS
BERAFB EFARETESFEER I
EHEUWAAI327,0005F -

HREBRE T RANNE  HERREMSE
BROBRERBEBCKL BEEERE
ZERBRERBHRERLIEGRENHENR
BHEBREMEBENER -

9

BlEmEEB AR AT /2025 F 3K



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWKR DN

Cost of sales and Gross Profit

Costs of sales mainly consists of (i) cost of raw materials and
trading products; (ii) manufacturing overheads; (iii) direct labour;
and (iv) crane hiring costs. The cost of sales slightly increased from
approximately RM22.1 million for the year ended 31 May 2024 to
approximately RM22.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2025,
representing an increase of approximately 0.21%.

The total cost of sales from the manufacturing and sale of precast
concrete junction boxes decreased from approximately RM21.0
million for the year ended 31 May 2024 to approximately RM20.7
million for the year ended 31 May 2025, representing a decrease of
approximately of 1.61%.

The Gross Profit increased from approximately RM8.6 million for the
year ended 31 May 2024 to approximately RM9.4 million for the year
ended 31 May 2025. The increase is mainly due to the management
is focussing on precast junction boxes with higher profit margin and
better control in expense.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by approximately
RMO.4 million or 6.69% from approximately RM5.9 million for the
year ended 31 May 2024 to approximately RM5.5 million for the year
ended 31 May 2025.

The Group's administrative expenses mainly consisted of salaries,
welfare and other benefits, rent and rates, general office expenses,
depreciation and professional service fees. The decrease was mainly
attributable to significant effort was put in controlling expenses.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by
approximately RM0.5 million or 36.95% from approximately RM1.4
million for the year ended 31 May 2024 to approximately RM1.9
million for the year ended 31 May 2025. The increase is mainly
attributable to the increase in bonus, commission, entertainment
and travelling expenses and the expenses incurred by new business.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly consisted of
salaries, welfare and other benefits for sales and marketing staff and
travelling and entertainment expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Profit for the year

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately RM82,000 for the
year ended 31 May 2025 (2024: RM108,000) due to the net effect of
(i) the increase in revenue for the year ended 31 May 2025; (i) the
increase in selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31
May 2025; (iii) the decrease in administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 May 2025; and (iv) the share of results of an associate for
the year ended 31 May 2025.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Operational risk

The Group’s operation is subject to general economic and
market risks which may affect the competition and profitability
of construction projects. The Group's key risk exposures are
summarised as follows:

(@  Fluctuation in the prices of our major raw materials may have
adverse impacts on the Group'’s financial results;

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from the manufacturing
and sale of precast concrete junction boxes to its customers
for infrastructure upgrades and expansion work for
construction projects, which are non-recurrent in nature
and there is no guarantee that the customers will place new
business purchase orders; and

The Group’s cash flow position may deteriorate due to a
mismatch between the time of receipt of payments from its
customers and payments to its suppliers if the Group is unable
to manage its cash flow mismatch properly.

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Risks Factors” in the prospectus of the Group dated
6 July 2017 (the “Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Financial risks

As a manufacturer of precast concrete junction boxes, the Group
has to purchase raw materials from its suppliers from time to time
based on its procurement policy. The Group relies on cash inflow
from its customers to meet its payment obligations to our suppliers.
The Group's cash inflow is dependent on the prompt settlement
of its payments. As at 31 May 2025, the Group recorded trade
receivables amounting to approximately RM5.4 million, the number
of trade receivables turnover days was approximately 81 days
which exceeded the credit period stipulated on the Group's service
agreements with its customers with average trade payable turnover
days of approximately 47 days. The Group is exposed to credit risk
and liquidity risk. For further details, please refer to note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 May 2025, the Group's cash and cash equivalents was
approximately RM22.7 million (31 May 2024: approximately RM28.2
million).

As at 31 May 2025, the Group has no borrowings (31 May 2024: Nil).

As at 31 May 2025, the Group's current ratio was 2.71 (31 May 2024:
3.00), which is calculated based on the total current assets divided
by the total current liabilities. The gearing ratio was Nil as at 31
May 2025 and 31 May 2024, which is calculated based on the total
interest-bearing loans divided by the total equity.

As at 31 May 2024 and 31 May 2025, the Group had no bank
borrowings. The Group’s financial position is sound and strong.
With available bank balances and cash and bank credit facilities, the
Group has sufficient liquidity to satisfy its funding requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year. The share capital of the Group only comprises of
ordinary shares.

As at 31 May 2025, the share capital and equity attributable to
owners of equity of the Company amounted to approximately RM7.3
million and approximately RM29.4 million respectively (31 May 2024
RM6.0 million and RM30.3 million respectively). Details of the capital
risk management are set out in the note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save for disclosed in note 39, the Group has no capital commitments
in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at
31 May 2025 and 31 May 2024.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION
Since a substantial amount of income and profit of our Group is
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit (“RM"), any fluctuations in the
value of RM may adversely affect the amount of dividends, if any,
payable in HKD to our Shareholders. Furthermore, fluctuations in
the RM's value against other currencies will create foreign currency
translation gains or losses and may have an adverse effect on our
Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.
Any imposition, variation or removal of foreign exchange controls
may adversely affect the value, translated or converted into HKD,
of our Group’s net assets, earnings or any declared dividends.
Cconsequently, this may adversely affect our Group's ability to pay
dividends or satisfy other foreign exchange requirements. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

BXREB
AEENEARBREAREED - AEH
BB 1 B AR AR -

M20256F5 A3 RAFIREHEB AL
BARBESBNATIAESTR20IEE
S H (2024F5831H : DRl AR6OBESE
R30IFELTE) - BEARBREEMNFBFHRN
RAE B WERMEES -

BAREE

BRI EES9PTH BB & SN - 20255 H31H &
20245 A31H - AEEWEABUEDE
T 55 T2 5% S B0 B AR o

BE 2% B = B

P R 7 52 B KR 0 W A B 1) 25 A B BR PR 2B
SH(SEDE SEBEENERNEHY
AREEHNBTHEMNEMNRREE (IE)
THERTNEE -BE STALHEMEXR
B EER B K & A IMEE L W as sl B A -
VA EHARENERS  MHRRRLS
EEERTNEZE - TANNEEHNEE -
EHAMBORESH B ARENFEE
ENFEMDERREBERLERKETH
BEEKTMNEZE At EARSHAE
[ {5 BB B B B b SN BEE 75 SR A BE D X
THEE AEEKTYEZEELINERR
W HEREEEIHERINERR

13

BlEmEEB AR AT /2025 F 3K



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

CHARGE OVER ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 May 2025, the Group had bank deposits pledged with banks
totalling approximately RM1.2 million (31 May 2024: approximately
RMO0.2 million). These deposits were to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
As at 31 May 2025, the Company did not have any significant
investments held.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS, AND
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

On 16 August 2024 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with the Vendor, pursuant to which
the Wanshun Technology Industrial Group Limited (the “Vendor”)
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire, the entire equity interest of the target company (a company
to be incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability which will hold
the entire equity interest of a company incorporated in the PRC,
which in turn holds the entire equity interest of Shenzhen Wanshunfu
Smart Life Service Company Limited (“Shenzhen Wanshunfu”).
The consideration is HK$5.5 million and shall be satisfied by way of
issue of the promissory note by the Company on the completion
date. The consideration was determined by the parties after arm'’s
length negotiations with reference to the adjusted net asset value
of Shenzhen Wanshunfu (assuming reorganisation has taken place),
which is approximately HK$5.53 million. Details of which, please
refer to announcement dated 16 August 2024 and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statement.

Save for disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year
ended 31 May 2025.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

On 1 August 2025 (after trading hours), Wanshun Technology
Industrial Group Limited, a company incorporate in Hong Kong with
limited liability (the “Vendor”), Shenzhen Wanshun eCar Cloud Tech
& Information Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability (the “Target Company”), Gallant Empire Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and a directly
wholly-owned by the Company (the “Purchaser”) entered into the
Sale and Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Purchaser
has agreed to purchase and the Vendor has agreed to sell the 1%
of the registered capital of the Target Company, which is legally
and beneficially owned by the Vendor (“Sale Capital”) for a total
Consideration of HK$34.874 million, which shall be settled issue of
1,215,630 new Shares to be allotted and issued by the Company to
the Vendor credited as fully paid for the purpose of the settlement of
the Consideration (the “Consideration Shares”). As one or more of
the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
for the Acquisition exceed 5% but all of them are less than 25%, the
Acquisition constitutes a disclosable transaction of the Company
and is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from the Shareholders’ approval requirement set out in the
GEM Listing Rules. Details of which, please refer to announcement
dated 1 August 2025. The transaction is not yet completed up to the
date of this report.

Save for disclosed above, there is no specific future plan for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of the report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

The shares of the Company were listed on 19 July 2017 (the “Listing
Date”) on the GEM by a way of a public offer and placing (collectively
as the “Share Offer”) (the “Listing”). The net proceeds received by
the Company from the Share Offer, after deducting underwriting fees
and other expenses, were approximately HK$29.6 million.

The net proceeds from the Listing have not been fully utilized up
to the year ended 31 May 2025 in accordance with the expected
timeline set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated on 2 May 2024,
having considered the latest business environment and development
needs of the Group, the Board had resolved to change the use of
unutilised proceeds from the Share Offer.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWKR DN

The following table sets out the net proceeds from the Share Offer, TXREFIBRGEEMESREFE  EF DR
the reallocated unutilised proceeds and the utilised amountuptothe HIREAABIIBENEE#H 2202545 A 31
year ended 31 May 2025. AIEFENESASHEE -

Actual Utilised Actual
use of net amount use of net
Planned proceeds Reallocated after proceeds  Reallocated
use of net fromthe  Unutilised  unutilised reallocation  Unutilised fromthe  unutilised
proceeds Listing proceeds proceeds for the proceeds  1June 2024 proceeds  Expected
from the Date to up to asat yearended up to to asat timeframe for
Share Offer  2May2024 2May2024 2May2024 31May2024 31May2024 31May2025 31May2025 intended use
H 2024
BLmAH 6A1HE
22024 % R2024E  BE0UE 2025 % 12025 %
5828 EZ204% 5A2H 5310 EZ204F 58318 5A318
REZEN fERE 5A28% ENAEM LEE 58318 %A  EHNSEM
FERERR FHH KB KBR ENAEAN BBA REN B REREN
Wit 8RE ERAR BRE fe3E CoRLE fBRRE ERRZ fiE%E RAREXR
HkSmilion — HKSmilion  HK$milion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$milion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$milion  HKS million

Tt — o

BEAT BEAT BEAT BEATL BEAT BERTL BEAT BERTL

Expansion of production BEUTHABEAER

capacity through

() expandingourExistng () BRABAEMH 70 (6.0 10 - - - - -
Selangor Plant i

i) completing the i) TREUNDK 73 (24) 49 - - - - -

establishment of our BORER
New Kulaijaya Plant and

(i) recrutingnewstaffs (i) REHET 26 (22 04 08 (02 06 (06) -
(note ) (Hiztb)
Acquisition of aparcel of land B8 B R 2 EB0 84 - 84 - - - - -
in Southern Malaysia ik
Expansion of our business ~ EEHBEERLERL 27 - 27 - - - - -
vertically in the supply BRAMENEER
chain of the precast EERBER
concrete junction box
industry through mergers
and acquisitions
Bxpansion of our salesand ~ BEAHE RTH 08 08) 00 - - - - -
marketing team EEEHK
General working capital -REEES 08 08) 00 - - - - -
Acquisition o land use rigt BB R Az - - 00 132 (13) 19 (119) -
of the Land in Selangor, EFENZRH
Malaysia THERE
Development costof self- — Zit B BEREN - - 00 34 - 34 - 34 Intended to Use up
used factory on the ARRAR the remaining
Land and purchase of BERERER funds by
equipment and fixtures 31 May 2026
HR2026E
5A318%
FgBRBTES
296 (122) 174 174 (15 159 (125) 34
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Notes:

(@  The unused Listing proceeds have been deposited in licensed

banks in Malaysia and Hong Kong.

(b)  The funds have been utilized on recruiting and salaries of staffs for

the expansion and renovation works.

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 May 2024 and 31 May 2025, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2025, we had 73 employees who are located in
Malaysia, the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the
PRC. The Group generally recruits employees from the open market
by placing recruitment advertisements. The Group entered into
individual labour contracts with each of the employees in accordance
with the applicable labour laws of Malaysia, the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and the PRC, which cover matters such
as wages, employee benefits and grounds for termination. The
remuneration package that the Group offers to the employees
includes salary, bonuses, allowances and medical benefits. In
general, the Group determines a Director’'s and an employee’s
salary based on the Director’'s and the employee’s qualifications,
experience and capability and the prevailing market remuneration
rate. The Group has designed a review system to assess the
performance of our employees once a year, which forms the basis
of our decisions with respect to salary adjustments, bonuses and
promotions. The long term incentive scheme of the Group include a
share option scheme.

Hfat
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NEBHFTIIRTT

b)) FREZCHEZMBETIRZABENET
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RARERY EFAEFAEASERERRE
mEH 8N E HREMES -

HAREE
M2024F 5318 M2025F5A31H » A&
BB ERKABE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENMED
FUND RAISING EXERCISE OF THE COMPANY ARAARBETZBAANEETH

DURING THE PAST TWELVE MONTHS

Net proceeds
to be raised Proposed use of

Actual use of

Date of announcement  Fund raising activity (approximately) net proceeds net proceeds
SEMBREA MENEFH FrERIBFEH
=R SEED FHEKWE) BERE BRAZ
27 June 2024 Subscription of news Shares HK$2.10 million For repayment of Partially
(completed on under general mandate promissory note (HK$1.5 million)
17 July 2024) granted on 22 November used as intended
2023 and the remaining
has not been
utilized
20245 6 A 27 H BAER2023F 1M A2 AEH 20888T REERALER #HH(5EEET)
(R202457 A7 B5%R) B —REERBEIRND FE#E A Rk F &%
o mAEA
Notes: e -

1. The remaining funds have been deposited in licensed banks in 1. #TELCFEHASRKET REBE MR
Malaysia and Hong Kong. 17 °

2. The Group intended to use up the remaining fund by 31 May 2026. 2.  AREE#N 202645 A 31 B AT K E A 4
TE® -

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any RAHEBH  EEEAEEHTE LSO
change to the plan as to the remaining funds. S & IR A ]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
On 1 August 2025 (after trading hours), Wanshun Technology
Industrial Group Limited, a company incorporate in Hong Kong with
limited liability (the “Vendor”), Shenzhen Wanshun eCar Cloud Tech
& Information Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability (the “Target Company”), Gallant Empire Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and a directly
wholly-owned by the Company (the “Purchaser”) entered into the
Sale and Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Purchaser
has agreed to purchase and the Vendor has agreed to sell the 1%
of the registered capital of the Target Company, which is legally
and beneficially owned by the Vendor (“Sale Capital”) for a total
Consideration of HK$34.874 million, which shall be settled issue of
1,215,630 new Shares to be allotted and issued by the Company to
the Vendor credited as fully paid for the purpose of the settlement of
the Consideration (the “Consideration Shares”). As one or more of
the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
for the Acquisition exceed 5% but all of them are less than 25%, the
Acquisition constitutes a disclosable transaction of the Company
and is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from the Shareholders’ approval requirement set out in the
GEM Listing Rules. Details of which, please refer to announcement
dated 1 August 2025.

On 1 August 2025 (after trading hours), the board of directors of the
Company announces that the board lot size of the ordinary shares
in the Company (the “Share(s)") for trading on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited will be changed from 1,200 Shares to 400
Shares with effect from 9:00 a.m. on Friday, 22 August 2025. Details
of which, please refer to announcements dated 1 August 2025 and 2
August 2025.

WEHRER
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EERGEREEEMMT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Loh Swee Keong, aged 59, is the founder of the Group. He was
appointed to the Board on 28 October 2016 and is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall business strategy, approving annual budget proposals, and
major business decisions of the group. Mr. Loh has over 20 years of
work experience in the precast concrete junction box industry. Mr.
Loh completed his secondary school from five level education in
Tsung Wah National Type Secondary School, Kuala Kangsar, Perak,
Malaysia in November 1985.

Before establishing the group, Mr. Loh established a sole
proprietorship under the name Jackon Trading in 1989, where he was
primarily involved in the supply of ready-mix concrete to construction
companies in Malaysia. In March 1993, Mr. Loh co-founded Target
Precast, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which was
at that time primarily involved in the supply of ready-mix concrete to
construction companies, negotiating business with customers and
responsible for the daily operations of the group. In 1995, Mr. Loh,
for the first time, manufactured the moulds using the then existing
technology for precast concrete junction boxes and commenced the
production and manufacturing of precast junction concrete boxes to
customers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Ka Hei (BBZ &), aged 43, was appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 27 June
2017 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and the
chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yau is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained his Bachelor’'s Degree
of Business Administration in Business Economics from the City
University of Hong Kong in November 2007. Mr. Yau has over 10
years experiences in accounting and auditing.

He is currently the finance manager of a Hong Kong company, which
engages in energy trading business.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EERGEREEEMMT

Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert (5 % ), aged 65, graduated from
Pomona College, California, USA with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in
1983. Mr. Ma possesses extensive experience in corporate banking
and private banking in major USA and European financial institutions.
He was previously a vice president of a renowned USA investment
bank in Hong Kong. He is currently a general manager of Incu
Corporate Finance Limited, a consulting firm, where he is responsible
for office administration.

Ms. Yau Ka Ying (E &%), aged 37, obtained a Bachelor's degree
of Business Administration in Tourism Management from Jinan
University in 2009. Ms. Yau has 10 years of experience in marketing
and she is currently a business and marketing consultant of a Hong
Kong consultancy company since April 2022. Ms. Yau is also a
commentator in Hong Kong Jockey Club.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Low Yew Kuan, aged 59, is the Head of Finance of the
Malaysia‘s subsidiaries of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations and the financial and accounting activities of the group.
Mr. Low obtained his Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration
from the RMIT University, Melbourne in Jan 2001. He was further
admitted as a fellow of the Institute of Financial Accountants in the
United Kingdom in June 2005 and the Institute of Public Accountants,
Melbourne, Australia in June 2015. Mr. Low has over 30 years of
experience in the manufacturing and accounting field.

Before joining our Group in January 2018, Mr. Low worked as
Accounts Manager in the Finance Division of Viscount Plastics
Industry Sdn Bhd for the period from February 1992 to May 2005. In
June 2005, Mr. Low joined Lam Seng Plastics Sdn Bhd as Finance &
Admin Manager. In May 2012, Mr. Low worked as Finance Manager
of the Finance Department in KMC Packaging Sdn Bhd, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a Singaporean listed company. He was later
promoted as Acting General Manager in year 2016. In 2016, Mr. Low
joined Crown Beverage Cans (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Crown which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange)
as Head of Finance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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Mr. Leung Tze Wai (2 F &), aged 42, was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 1 November 2018. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Commerce (Accounting) from the University of Adelaide,
Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia and is
currently the Finance Manager of the Company. He has over 10
years' experience in the auditing, accounting and financial sectors.

Ms. Siew Poi Voon, aged 49 is the Factory Manager. She is
responsible for overseeing the manufacturing and operations of the
production activities of the Group. Ms. Siew joined the Group as a
Human Resource and Administration Executive in March 2013 and
was promoted as our Assistant Factory Manager in April 2015. Ms.
Siew was subsequently appointed as our Factory Manager in August
2016. Ms. Siew obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Human Development
from the University Putra Malaysia in July 2001.

From August 2001 to March 2003, Ms. Siew worked as the Human
Resource Officer of YP Precision (M) Sdn. Bhd. where she was
responsible for general human resource functions which include
payroll, training and development, recruitment as well as matters
pertaining to foreign workers in the company. She subsequently
joined the Delcol Water Solution Sdn. Bhd. in April 2003 as a Human
Resource Executive. In December 2007, Ms. Siew joined Jordone
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. as a Human Resource and Administration
Executive. She was subsequently promoted to the post of Assistant
Administrative Manager in August 2009 where she was responsible
for the company’s purchasing, advertising and branding (including
media and branding) as well as general administration duties.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEgRSE

The Board is pleased to present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group is principally engaged in (i) manufacturing
and trading of precast junction boxes, (i) trading of accessories and
pipes and provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary services in
Malaysia and (iii) e-commerce platform in PRC.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 37 to 58 of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution by principal
business segments during the Year are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF COMPANY'S NAME

On 10 October, 2024, the English name of the Company was changed
from”SK Target Group Limited” to “WS-SK Target Group Limited”
and the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company “Is 38 %
AR/ E]" was changed to " & B 58 & B B BR 2 7] . The English
and Chinese stock short name of the Company were subsequently
changed to “WS-SK TARGET" and " & JIE 55 58 & B " with effect from
9:00 a.m. on 11 November, 2024. For further details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 11 September 2024, 4
October 2024 and 1 November 2024 and the circular of the Company
dated 16 September 2024.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review of the Group for the year ended 31 May
2025 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 6 to 7 and the business review and outlook of the Group is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 8 to 19 of this annual report. The discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year and the material factor
underlying its financial performance and financial position are set
out in "“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 19
respectively.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2025 and the
state of the affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on pages 66 to 67.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 May 2025 (2024 Nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statement, is set out on page 168 on this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital and movements during the
Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity set out on pages 68 to 70 respectively.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

As at 31 May 2025, the Company'’s reserve available for distribution
which consists of retained profit and the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company is RM21.3 million (2024: RM21.2 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the law of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended
31 May 2025.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers
are key stakeholders to the Group’s success. The Group strive to
achieve corporate sustainability through engaging employees,
providing quality products and services to our customers,
collaborating with suppliers to deliver quality sustainable products
and services and supporting our community.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the top five customers together accounted for
approximately 16% of the Group’s revenue and the Group's largest
customer accounted for approximately 6% of the Group’s revenue.

During the Year, the top five suppliers together accounted for
approximately 41% of the Group’s purchases and the Group'’s largest
supplier accounted for approximately 15% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Directors were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Hei

Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert

Ms. Yau Ka Ying (appointed on 6 August 2025)

Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (resigned on 2 December 2024)

Ms. Chan Sheung Yu (appointed on 2 December 2024 and
resigned on 6 August 2025)

By virtue of Article 108 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert and Ms. Yau Ka Ying shall retire at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-
election at the said meeting.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACT

The Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong has entered
into a service or an appointment contract with the Company for a
fixed term of three years, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ written notice served by either party on the other,
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in Articles.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract or an appointment letter with the Company for a
fixed term of one to three years, which may be terminated by not
less than one month’s written notice served by either party on the
other, and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions
on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in Articles.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract or
an appointment letter which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographies details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 20 to 22.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS' REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individual's remuneration are set out in notes 6 and 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year and at any time during the year
ended 31 May 2025.
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INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN
CONTRACTS

No contract of significance has been entered during the year ended
31 May 2025 between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders or any its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 May 2025.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 May 2025.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float or not less than 25% of the
Shares are in the hands of the public as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

COMPETING BUSINESS OF DIRECTORS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 May 2025, none of the Directors, nor the controlling
shareholders of the Company and any of their respective close
associates has any interest in a business which competes or likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 May 2025, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) as required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and/
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) as required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Sections
352 of the SFO, or (iii) as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings
by directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

ordinary Shares of the Company

Capacity/
Nature of Interest

S, ERME

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Note 2)

Loh Swee Keong 5t 4 (K7 2) SPRHEE

Notes:

(1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares.

(2)  Merchant World Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Loh Swee Keong. Mr. Loh

Swee Keong is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Merchant World Investments Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Interest in controlled corporation
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KB (REREEFRBERIEHEES
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ARBRARAIREZSREE G FE 352
FEEFEENELMEER AR - i) iR &
GEM TR B 5.46 & FTil ETEITAE S
ETRSHRTBREEME AR R KRB
WERRABIT

RAREER

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held/
interested
(Note 1)

i B&E
ERZE 8T
ZEREE
(Krat1)

Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital of the
Company

AR T
EBRTRAE
A SIER

2,911,200 (L) 17.80%

fifat -
() EXFEBORTZALIRBOOTE -

(2)  Merchant World Investments Limited & —
RN EBEZHEFEMAKZA AR W H
Loh Swee Keongse £ & B - BIFE 5
K BAE 154 - Loh Swee Keong 5t 4 118 &
B B8 Merchant World Investments Limited
BENIRNPHEEER -
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Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2025, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) (i) as required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO), or (i) as
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 May 2025, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or as required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 and SFO were as follows:
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ORDINARY SHARES OF THE COMPANY ARAREBR
Number of
Shares held/ Approximate
Capacity/Nature interested percentage of
of Interest (Note 1) share holding
¥ ®E
Rz ROEE B4 IR RE
B EatE (BtaE1) Bok
Merchant World Investments Limited  Beneficial owner 2,911,200 (L) 17.80%
ERn#AEA
Ms. Woon Sow Sum (Note 2) Interest of spouse 2,911,200 (L) 17.80%
Woon Sow Sumzz =+ (Atz£2) B B 4 5
Greater Elite Holdings Limited (Note 3)  Beneficial owner 2,124,210 (L) 12.99%

Greater Elite Holdings Limited (77230 &E=m=#A A

Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 2,124,210 (L) 12.99%
BEREE (M3 ZPEHA E s

Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina (Note 4)  Interest of spouse 2,124,210 (L) 12.99%
BRI+ (M7t 4) B B 4 5

Mr. Lei Meng Fong Beneficial owner 2,725,272 (L) 16.67%
AR S A4 EmEBA

Mr. Choy Sheung Ki Gary Beneficial owner 1,032,300 (L) 6.31%
BEmITE A BB A

Notes: Hiat -

(1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares. (1) BXFHOERTZATREOELETE -

(20 Ms. Woon Sow Sum is the spouse of Mr. Loh Swee Keong and is  (2)  Woon Sow Sum %z &= & Loh Swee Keong 5t
deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which Mr. Loh ARBLES - RIBE S RS GO R A
Swee Keong has interest under the SFO. & {ER Loh Swee Keong 5t 4 H A i 25 MY FT

BROPHEBER

(3)  Greater Elite Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI ~ (3)  Greater Elite Holdings Limited & — & 573 &
and is wholly-owned by Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul. Mr. Law Fung BERELZESFEMKIHAT - WHERR
Yuen Paul is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by SERERER - REBEFHFRBEGG - 2
Greater Elite Holdings Limited for the purpose of the SFO. Bl IR 4 A #5484 7 R Greater Elite Holdings

Limited $:75 #) 2 SRR {3 o A M 25 o

(4  Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina is the spouse of Mr. Law Fung Yuen (4) ZEBEZELZLTAREBREENHEE RIEE

Paul and is deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which FREBEGRY - BREAXNEENERR
Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul has interest under the SFO. EERBERNTBRNDFHEEZ -
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Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2025, the Company has
not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full time and part time), or any member of the Group,
including any Executive, Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, advisors, consultants of the Group.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 27 June 2017
whereby the Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion and
subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to
the Eligible Participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company.
The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from the date of the adoption of the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue upon the date of the
shares of the Company listed on the GEM, being 62,000,000 shares
(or such numbers of shares as shall result from a subdivision or a
consolidation of such 62,000,000 from time to time) (the “Scheme
Limit"). Subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting, the
Board may (i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of the approval by the shareholders in a general
meeting; and/or (i) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit to Eligible
Participants specifically identified by the Board.
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The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company
at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time
to time. No options shall be granted under any schemes of the
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to each Participants in any twelve months
period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant
of options is subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
with such Eligible Participants and his associates abstaining from
voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant must be accepted within seven days inclusive
of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable by
the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an options is HKD1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option at
the price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the share.

As at 31 May 2025, no share option was granted, exercised, lapsed
or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 May
2025 was the Company, its or any of its holding companies or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
and the Chief Executives (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares,
or underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

THE ISSUE OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 27 June 2024 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
the subscription agreement with the Mr. Lei Meng Fong (the
“Subscriber”), who is a merchant and independent third party (as
defined under GEM Listing Rules). Pursuant to which the Company
will allot and issue, and the Subscriber will subscribe for, an
aggregate of 27,252,720 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.08 per share. The net proceed from the subscription
after deducting related professional fees and related expenses
approximately HK$2,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
RM1,192,000). The subscription was completed on 17 July 2024.
Details of which are set out in the announcements dated 27 June
2024 and 17 July 2024.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 May 2025, there are no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company
(as defined under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules) which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules. Details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitute a connected transaction or a continuing
connected transaction, which needs to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Details of the retirement benefits plan of the Group as at 31
May 2025 are set out in the note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association
("Articles of Association”) of the Company, the applicable laws
and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in
their offices. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the Share Option Scheme are set out above, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked arrangement during the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Company recognised its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Company is committed
to the sustainable development of the environment and our society.
The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental practices to ensure our business meet the required
standards and ethics in respect of environmental protection.

DONATION
During the Year, the Group had made charitable and other donation
for approximately RM95,940 (2024 RM27,840).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-
executive Directors were independent during their tenure during the
Year.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2025 AGM
to be held on Friday, 21 November 2025, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 18 November 2025 to
Friday, 21 November 2025, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2025 AGM or any adjournment thereof, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investors Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 17 November 2025.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2025 have
been audited by McMillan who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of McMillan as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

WS-SK Target Group Limited
Loh Swee Keong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 August 2025

36

WS-SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

EERERMBFECFE
BRETHEAARBR2025F11A218 (2
HA) BITM05FRRAFASRES
WERER  ARAKH2025411 188
(EH=)E2025% 11 A21R8 (EHA) (B2
HEMA)EEHERMBFELFE  BHHE
B ETROHBEER - AFAEREE
20255 FBRBAFAESEAMNESTENE L
KE FIBEBFXHERBERE &EZE
2025 1M A178 (28 —) THFEE=1
DRl RRARANEBEERNBPEFLHE
BEFREELERRAR WA AFTEERE
16EERESFT L1718 WIBBRFE -

BB
HE20255F5A3NBIEFEMNTBHRED A
REER EBERIFAERRBERES
BE -BEFZEARS AR RN RZE
RENEENRRBEFRAE LIRS -

AEEG®
BEmREEERAA
FE

Loh Swee Keong

F#H 20258 A29H



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the senior management of the Group is committed to
achieve a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate good
corporate governance practices for improving the accountability and
transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal control
and risk management systems from time to time so as to protect
the rights of the shareholders and enhance shareholder value.
The Directors consider that good corporate governance provides
a framework that is crucial for effective management, successful
business growth and a healthy corporate culture which in return
benefits the Group’s stakeholders as a whole.

The Board has adopted and save as disclosed in the following
paragraph complied with the principles and code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors will continue
to review and monitor its corporate governance practices in order
to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with
the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements from time to
time, and to meet the rising expectation of shareholders and other
stakeholders of the Group.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established.

Mr. Loh is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company. In view of Mr. Loh has been operating
and managing the operating subsidiaries of the Group since 1993,
the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to
have Mr. Loh taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

Save as disclosed above, during the year in the opinion of the
Directors, the Group has complied with the code provision of the CG
Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry of
all the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors for the year ended
31 May 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four Directors, including one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and three
Independent Non-executive Directors who are Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr.
Ma, She Shing Albert and Ms. Yau Ka Ying.

Mr. Loh Swee Keong is the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Board.

OVERALL ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability. The
Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith and
in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders and
fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills,
care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory
requirements. The Board has the full support from the Directors
and the senior management of the Company to discharge its
responsibilities.

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior
management are set out in the section headed with “Directors and
Senior Management Profiles” of this report.
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s policies and
business plans, and monitoring internal controls and performances.
The overall management of the Company'’s business is vested in the
Board which assumes the responsibility for promoting the success
of the Company by supervising its affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group’s overall strategies, approving the annual
development plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating
performance; reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control
system and supervising the management’s performance. Regarding
the Group’s corporate governance, the Board is responsible for
performing following duties:

(@ determine and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group and make recommendations;

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Loh is the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. In view of Mr.
Loh has been operating and managing the operating subsidiaries of
the Group since 1993, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to have Mr. Loh taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is
appropriate in such circumstance.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and setting out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry and regional experience. The ultimate decision will be based
on the merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board.

To meet the objectives of the Group’s Board Diversity Policy, the
Board consists of members with expertise in the precast concrete
junction box industry, accounting, internal control, corporate finance
and administration.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
The Board delegates to the Management in respect of the major
corporate matters as stated below:

1. preparation of annual, interim and quarterly results of the
Group to be approved by the Board;

2. execution of the corporate strategies and directions of the
Group adopted by the Board;

3. implementation of sufficient systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures of the Group; and

4. carrying out daily business operations and decision-makings of
the Group, etc.
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BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES

The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings, it
meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances.

During the year, 10 Board meetings have been held for the
discussion and approval of important matters such as the approval
of interim results, annual results and dividends, etc. The attendance
record of each Director during the year at Board meetings is as
follows:

Name of Director

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Loh Swee Keong

Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Yau Ka Hei EBRE K4
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert BHEELE

Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (resigned on 2 December 2024)
Ms. Chan Sheung Yu (appointed on

2 December 2024 and resigned on 6 August 2025)
Ms. Yau Ka Ying (appointed on 6 August 2025)

The Directors do not have any relationship (Including financial,
business, family or other material relationships) between themselves.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Group has not established a corporate governance committee
and thus the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in CG Code D.3.1 such as reviewing and
determining the policies and practices on corporate governance of
the Group, developing the Group’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. To
enable all the Directors to participate in the meetings, the Company
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
the Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner. Notice of regular Board meetings is
given to all Directors and they can include matters for discussion in
the agenda as they think fit. Draft minutes of Board meeting shall be
circulated to all Directors for comments prior to confirmation of the
minutes. The signed minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.
Every Board member has full access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
They are also entitled to have full access to Board documents and
related materials so that they are able to make an informed decision.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert and Ms. Yau Ka Ying shall
retire at the 2025 AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The biographical details of above mentioned Directors proposed to
be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”
on pages 20 to 22 of this annual report.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles. Each Independent Non-executive Directors is
required to inform the Group as soon as practicable if there is any
change that may affect his/her independence. The Company has
received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independency pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers these Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant, the Directors are encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company. During the year ended 31
May 2025, the current Board members participated in the following
training programs:

FEEXRER
REREZ—EHEAGBE2AEANRIEHME
MEBERLTHEFTSFELAER  ARRRBE
E2HEIERERAELAT S NIBENE
BREABLTARETNAG  BELE
B2 MB N EE - B E2025F5 831 IE4F
B -BRAEEEERECLETIIEIEE :

Training on

corporate governance,
regulatory updates

on disclosable
transactions

and connected
transactions

ERLEER -
REEHETHERER
Name of Directors BRER S i
Executive Director BITES
Loh Swee Keong Loh Swee Keong v
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Yau Ka Hei BRE 4
Ma She Shing Albert BHE v
Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (resigned on 2 December 2024)  BF & 54 (2024412 A2 B
) v
Ms. Chan Sheung Yu (appointed on BRI 2z £ (74 2024 F 12 A2 A
2 December 2024 and resigned on 6 August 2025) EZF MR 202558 A 6 H B {T) v
Ms. Yau Ka Ying (appointed on 6 August 2025) EEga+ (202548 A6H
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Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company's operations and businesses as well as his/
her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations.

Ms. Chan Sheung Yu (“Ms. Chan”) obtained legal advice from a firm
of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as regards the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules that are applicable to Ms.
Chan as a director of the Company and the possible consequences
of making a false declaration or giving false information to the
Stock Exchange on 26 November 2024. Ms. Chan confirmed she
understood her obligations as a director of the Company.

Ms. Yau Ka Ying (“Ms. Yau") obtained legal advice from a firm
of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as regards the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules that are applicable to Ms.
Yau as a director of the Company and the possible conseqguences
of making false declaration or giving false information to the Stock
Exchange on 1 August 2025. Ms. Yau confirmed she understood her
obligations as a director of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “"Nomination Committee”). The terms of reference of the
Board's committee are posted on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange and are available to shareholders
upon request.

Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Committee on 27 June 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to
5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert
and Ms. Yau Ka Ying. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr.
Yau Ka Hei.
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The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the followings:

@)

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor, and be primarily
responsible for making recommendations to the board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

to review with the Group’s management, external auditors
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s policies
and system regarding internal controls (including financial,
operational and compliance controls), risk management
system and any statement by the Directors of the Company to
be included in the annual accounts prior to endorsement by
the Board;

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements and the annual, quarterly and interim
financial reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them prior to approval by the Board,
with particular focus on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices,

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustment resulting from the audit/review;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with the accounting and auditing standards;
and

(viy compliance with the listing requirements on the GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;
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(d) Oversee the issuer’s financial reporting system, the risk
management and the internal control systems;

(i)  to review the Company'’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems,

(i) to review arrangements employees of the Group can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-
up action;

(i)  to review the draft representation letter prior to approval
by the Board,;

(iv) to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the issuer’'s accounting and financial
reporting function;

(v) to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings, and

(vi) to assess the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control.

For the year ended 31 May 2025, 4 meetings have been held for the
Audit Committee and all the members of the Committee attended
the meetings. The Group's quarterly, interim and annual results have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34
to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph B.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this report,
the Remuneration Committee consists of one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Hei.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for the
followings:

to consult the chairman of the Board and/or the chief executive
of the Company (where applicable) about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. The Committee should
have access to independent professional advice if necessary;

@)

review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board'’s corporate goals and
objectives;

either (i) determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; or (ii) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management of the
Company. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

FMEES

RARBR2017F6 A27 B HFHEES -
7 38 AR GEM 7 47 Bl 55 5.34 & 5.36 1§ }2 GEM
EHRAMSE T RAEMCEE AT RE
XERMEFEBIR - HITHEEMESRE -
RAREAH FHEZESEE—ENTE
= - BlLoh Swee Keong st 4 LA & M 4 B 37 3k
BTES IBREXERSEFELLE -H
MEEgXRAMRELAE -

FHEESNTIZRENT

REMRTEETNFHEZHARALRF]
EESXRRRITBER (WER) -
WMERE ZEQRIENBUVEEER
8

HEEESMILNEETH MBS
i A] S LR TR I R B

(EEESEXEEEEARFERHR
TEENERERABNHINETE i)
MEFEERARRENNTEERS
REBEANENFMETE - HEBREEYD
Mz BRREEMNEEESR (BRER
R IEBERZENERENEE)

BB EmMARAD A /2025 F 1§ 47



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERBSE

make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries; and

review and approve compensation payable to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive.

For the year ended 31 May 2025, two meetings have been held for
the Remuneration Committee and all the members of the Committee
attended the meeting to review and make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration policy and the remuneration packages of
the Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the year ended 31 May 2025 are as follows:

Nil to HKD1,000,000
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The Group determines an Director’'s emolument based on each
Director’s qualifications, experience and capability and the prevailing
market remuneration rate.

The emolument payable to Directors depends on their respective
contractual terms under the service contracts and the appointment
letters, and as recommended by the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ emolument are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees required to be disclosed under Rule 18.30
of the GEM Listing Rules have been set out in notes 6 and 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Ms. Yau Ka Ying. The chairman
of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Loh Swee Keong.

The main roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include
the followings:

(@  review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nhominated for directorships;
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(c) assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company,

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors of the Company and succession
planning for Directors of the Company, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company; and

(e) have a policy concerning diversity of Board members, review
the policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set
for implementing the policy and should disclose the policy or
a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report
annually.

For the year ended 31 May 2025, two meetings have been held
for the Nomination Committee and all the members of the
Committee attended the meeting to review the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, the structure, size and
Composition of the Board and the Board diversity policy adopted by
the Company.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to identify candidates to
become a member of the Board and to make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of candidates nominated for directorships.
The Board shall be composed of members with balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to accomplish
the Group's business development, strategies, operation, challenges
and opportunities. The core criteria for selection include gender,
age, cultural and education background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience, number
of directorship in other listed/public companies and in case of
Independent Non-executive Directors, the number of years they
have already served. According to the nomination procedure,
the Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new Directors and recommends to the Board for decision. The
appointment shall be subject to the approval by the Board in
accordance with the Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules
and the Nomination Policy.
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2024 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2024 FRARBFRE

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.7 of the CG code, the Independent  RIE®EE AT RISTRIIEXFEALTIE BT
Non-executive Directors should attend general meetings and FFHITEERLERRASITHBRROHZR
develop a balanced understanding of the visions of shareholders. At & ‘A IEBE £ o 1202449 A 27 H 2217 #2024
the 2024 annual general meeting held on 27 September 2024, all the FREBEFEAES - IEBIIERTESEH
Independent Non-executive Directors attended the meeting. BHEARE -

For the year ended 31 May 2025, the attendance record of each  #H Z=202545A831HILFE > S EEHNHE
Director is set out in the table below: SEEE A T ¢

Number of attendance/number of meetings

Name of Directors for the year ended 31 May 2024
ESpE B22024F58N AL EENERRE SERY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
Exg ENEES FMZES REZES
=L =L =6 =6 REXE
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Loh Swee Keong 10/10 N/A 2/2 22 4/4
Loh Swee Keong 5t & TEA

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES
Mr. Yau Ka Hei 10/10 44 2/2 212 4/4
BRERE
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert 10/10 4/4 2/2 2/2 4/4
BRELE
Mr. Kwok Tsz Hin (resigned on 2 December 2024) 477 2/4 N/A N/A 4/4
ZFEF A (202412 A2 BEHE) NEH TEA
Ms. Chan Sheung Yu (appointed on
2 December 2024 and resigned on 6 August 2025) 2/2 2/2 N/A N/A 0/0
BN T (R2024F12 A2REZAR NEH TEA
722025 8 A 6 BEHE)
MSs. Yau Ka Ying (appointed on 6 August 2025) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
BRI T (R202558A6BEZT) TEA TEA NEH TEA TEA
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, results and cash
flows and in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles and the disclosure requirements under applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong.

The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial
statements prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to
the shareholders of the Company. The statements by the external
Auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, about their
reporting responsibility on the financial statements of the Group are
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 59 to 65 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
and risk management systems and for monitoring their effectiveness
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the assets of the Group.
The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate efficient
operation which in turn reduces the risks to which the Group is
exposed. The internal control and risk management systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
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The Group recognises that effective risk management is essential
for the long-term development on the Group’s business. The
management is responsible for establishing, implementing
and reviewing the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. The Audit Committee
will periodically review the Group’s compliance status with the
Hong Kong laws and will perform its functions by (i) reviewing the
internal control and legal compliance; (i) discussing the internal
control systems with the management of the Group to ensure
that the management has performed its duty to have an effective
internal control system and (iii) considering the major investigation
findings on internal control matters as delegated by the Board or its
own initiative and the management’s response to these findings.
While taking into full account of the new requirements effective
from the Listing Date under the GEM Listing Rules brought by Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited relating to risk management
and internal control, the management has formulated the risk
management and control framework. All employees are committed
to implement the risk management framework into the daily
operation.

In addition, there is no internal audit function within the Group and
the Group engaged an independent internal control consultant
(“Internal Control Consultant”) to conduct an annual review for
the year ended 31 May 2025 of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems in various material
aspects including financial, operational and compliance controls.
Based upon the recommendations from the Internal Control
Consultant, the Group has taken remedial actions. Further, in order
to continuously improve the Group’s corporate governance in the
future the Group will adopt the measures recommended by the
Internal Control Consultant.

Based on the result of the reviews as mentioned above, it is
considered that proper internal control and risk management
systems are in place and implemented effectively.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 May 2025, the remuneration paid or payable
to McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited in respect of the
statutory audit services and non-audit services for the Group are as
follows:

Nature of Services

R#EEE

EAZ RS
FFEZRS

Audit services
Non-audit services

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are to be
declared and paid to the shareholders and the level of dividend to be
paid.

Under the Dividend Paolicy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, among others,

financial results;

J cash flow situation;

o business conditions and strategies;

o future operations and earnings,

o capital requirements and expenditure plans;
J interests of shareholders,

o any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

o any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands, the GEM Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong
and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and
any other applicable laws and regulations. The Company does not
have any predetermined dividend distribution ratio. The Company's
dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be
declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Tze Wai was appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company on 1 November 2018. All Directors have access to
the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Mr. Leung taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 May 2025. The biographical details of Mr. Leung are set
out under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” on pages 20 to 22 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and
rights, separate resolutions can be proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’” meeting will be voted by
poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the website of The Stock Exchange and the Company's
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meetings ("EGM")

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The following procedures for shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles (as
amended from time to time), and the applicable legislation and
regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules (as amended from time
to time):

@)

56

EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition
(the "Requisition”), not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings (the “Eligible Shareholders”). Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for
the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two Months after the deposit of such requisition;

The Eligible Shareholders must deposit the Requisition to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
Room 1406-08, 14/F, Austin Tower, 22-26 Austin Avenue,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or to Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board and/
or the Company Secretary;,

If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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TRER®RSE

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company'’s
announcements, financial information and other information
are posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquiries.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may raise questions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the Directors
and management of the Company. Such questions, requests,
comments and suggestions can be addressed to the Company by
post to Room 1406-08, 14/F, Austin Tower, 22-26 Austin Avenue,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 3702
5315.

Should there are any enquiries and concerns from shareholders,
they may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investors Services Limited, by post to 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 2980 1333.
Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from the
Company if it deems appropriate.
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EXRERBSE

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a shareholders communication policy
between itself and its shareholders, and investors which aims to set
out the principles of the Company in relation to the shareholders’
communications, with the objective of ensuring timely, transparent
and accurate communications between the shareholders of the
Company and the Company. These include answering questions
through the annual general meeting, the publication of annual,
interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements and circulars,
the Company’s website at www.sktargetgroup.com and meetings
with investors and shareholders. News update of the Group's
business development and operation are also available on the
Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, there
has been no changes in the Company’s Constitutional documents.
A copy of the Company’s updated Constitutional Documents is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. Directors, senior management and employees of the
Group who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company are subject to dealing restrictions in securities
of the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. Any inside
information and any information which may potentially constitute
inside information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to
the Board and for the Board to decide on the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules will be announced on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B &S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF WS-SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WS-SK
TARGET GROUP LIMITED (formerly known as SK Target Group
Limited) (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 66 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2025, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 May 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter
we identified is impairment assessment of trade receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

8 5 EWRRERE R

BRELEE W)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
BEMNERNNEEFRERSR

Refer to notes 3(g)(v), 4, 21, 32(b) to the consolidated financial
Statements.
B2 BMERMEL3Q@V) ~ 421 32() °

As at 31 May 2025, the Group’s gross trade receivables is
approximately RM11,457,000 and out of those trade receivables
approximately RM5,054,000 were past due.

R20255A31B EXEESRERBATLAOR
11,457,000 % + BEAF 495,054,000 FHE ZEMGIEC B -

As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group's allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL") on
trade receivables as at 31 May 2025 amounted to approximately
RM6,076,000.

MZETBRRWEF2IMERE - BEEBMN202545A431H
WESERRENEHREEEE(RHEEERD BEOR
6,076,000 % °

The trade receivables net of allowance was RM5,381,000, which
represented approximately 10% of total assets of the Group.

Z S EWIRIE (FKREE) £5,381,00067F @ #h EEERE
EEH10% ©
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:
BB E S EWGIERENENIEFBE

o Understanding key controls on how
the management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables;

o BEREREMTE S EBGRIEEER
B2 SR BRI

o Challenging management’s basis
and judgement in determining credit
loss allowances on trade receivables
as at 31 May 2025, including their
identification of credit-impaired trade
receivables, and the basis of estimated
loss rate such as customers’ credit risk
grading dependent on the customers’
financial performance, historical loss
rates and forward-looking information;

e EREEBEETMN2025F5H31HK
BORBFBEEEEERECERR
HiE BREESHEEREESEK
I BRIA R B BEFEEE (R
TEFPHBRER BLEBEBEXRANE
MERGTENREPEERRBR) <&

A

o Evaluating the disclosures regarding
the impairment assessment of trade
receivables in notes 21 and 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements,

o SRS M E M E21 320+ E
HE S ERFIBERETHOREE
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

BRELEE W)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

8 5 B R R E G

As disclosed in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on estimated
loss rate, which is determined based on the management’s
assessment on information including credit profile of different
customers or debtors, ageing of the trade receivables, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected
timing and amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers or
debtors, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, and
any forward-looking information without undue cost or effort,
including time value of money where appropriate.

MERE T BEHREMERO)MEE - EEEETEEREGTS
BEGHEIEUFEN2BREHEEBESE  mbsrEa
ERBEEBEHTRATPIEBANEEER  BEHEEH
ERERR BYEELE RELAEBR  REEKRBEHNTES
PRRHEEReEURERABEPAEBANBERSHEREE
KR EMET  BEEFARENERARERZNEBZK
AN ESHEMAIEGER (BREESHEERE (B

) -

We identified the impairment assessment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter due to the significance of trade receivables to
the Group’s consolidated financial position and the involvement
of subjective judgement and management estimates in evaluating
the ECL of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

HREBESREKFEE E£BEGEAMBRRAZEEZE RN
h BEXEEZESREWRIERRERRNEREEBERELD
FTHAGREREMG KM E S BRBFIBERET GBI A
FREIZEIE -

EMNERNNEEBRELSEE

o Testing subsequent settlements of
credit-impaired trade receivables, on a
sample basis, by inspecting supporting
documents in relation to cash receipt
from trade receivables subsequent to
the end of the current reporting period,

o BBREENREHEEEE HER
HIENRWREIMEARAEER
BEZEZERFIENREER

J Obtaining and reviewing the
assessment prepared by the external
professional valuer engaged by the
management , with the assistance of
our valuation specialists;

o MERREMOEESERB TEFH
REEEZEMNIINDEXGEMR
BIFRTAE

o Assessing the underlying assumptions
adopted by management in the
provision matrix, with reference to
various factors such as the ageing
of accounts receivable balances, the
credit terms granted by the Group,
the historical repayment patterns and
settlement received from customers
subsequent to the end of the reporting
period on selected sample basis, and
forward-looking factors; and

o S EREEYRHEM AR AEER
= 2EZIER R (P10 R 7%
R EXSERTHNEESR  BAE
TEARBRERARBREEP KB W4
ERE(EEEHEER)) RATETR
ESN

o Assessing the qualifications, experience
and expertise of the external
professional valuer engaged by the
management and considered its
objectivity and independence.

o EEEEMZENBEZGEMD
B KR NBEANE TEEREER
B LE o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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NEZBERE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group as a
basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of audit work performed for the purpose of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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B &S

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF B MBXGAMERREREN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEE#E)

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we FHfIRBEFZEZE /BB HE AHME
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of A BHRREZ I ENZEEEIE - BIERE
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and BA&ZEE - B IEEFIER TR HF AR E
is therefore the key audit matter. We describe the matter in our % EHE SKEBRFEBHNBERT » PR EH
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure FEZEEA A BEHNTREZBHBBAAR
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we — FEZFENF R M FAEERER FIAFE -
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report & Bl FI S E X BATRE h sz EE -
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited RE(EB) ETMSBERERAT
Certified Public Accountants HEEEAD

Chan Chun Sing PR % 22

Practising Certificate Number P05537 2% B E R P05537

Hong Kong B

29 August 2025 2025% 8 A29H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBERAEMEEKRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025
HE202545A318IEFE

2025 2024
2025 2024 %
RM’000 RM'000

&% For

< R

Continuing operations

FREExER

(RENEIE))
(&=751)

493

Revenue A 5
Cost of sales HEK A
Gross profit E ]
Other income HAbug A
Allowance for credit loss, net EEEERETHE
Administrative expenses TEAX
Selling and distribution expenses & ko #HFL
Finance costs & AR 8
Share of results of an associate DG —RBE AR FEE 17
Profit before taxation B A5 A1 g ) 9
Taxation e 10
Profit for the period from REARBEBEREER 2

continuing operations HA A 5 )
Discontinued operations ERIEREEE

Loss from discontinued operations

KECRUEEEXH 2 BE 11

(385)

Profit for the year

FRE M

108

Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or l0ss:
Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign
operations

Hh 2 U A
HRAgEEFIRE
BamIER
R HBINETESE
HFE 5 58

410

Total comprehensive (expense)/
income for the year

FREmE (FX) BALE

518
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HERBERAEMEEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025
HE202545A318IEFE

2025 2024
2025 2024 %
RM’000 RM'000

& For

<A
(RENEIE))
(#2&75l)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable R A& %A AR ER
to owners of the Company: wm A (E518)
— from continuing operations — REFBREED 493
— from discontinued operations — REBRIEEEER (385)
108
Total comprehensive (expense)/ KABHEE AEEER
income for the year attributable to 2@ (BisZ), W A 458 -
owners of the Company:
— from continuing operations — REABELEER 903
— from discontinued operations — REBRIEEEET (385)
518
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF,(E8)
Basic (RM cents) YN 12
— From continuing operations — REFELEEL 3.63
— From discontinued operations ~ — 2R B B4R [FAE & ¥ (2.83)
— From continuing and — RARELER
discontinued operations BRI EET 0.80
The notes on pages 73 to 167 form an integral part of these £73Z& 167 B WK I Z 54 BB R E W
consolidated financial statements. — &5 e

EIEHREBERAT /20255 K 67



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A M BRI K

AS AT 31 MAY 2025
202545 H31H

Notes
Ktat

Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERFE 14
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15
Investment property "EYE 16
Investment in an associate REEL AR E 17
Intangible asset mEEE 18
Goodwill EES 19
Total Non-Current Assets ERBEEHE
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories e~y 20
Receivables, deposits and EWEIE - me &

prepayments TEfT 3K 21
Amount due from ultimate holding & Yt & 442 f% A &) 5018

company 22
Amount due from a shareholder FE UG B BR 5k 1B 22
Tax recoverable AU 177 18
Short-term bank deposits R ERIRI T 3K 23
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTEH 23
Total Current Assets RBEELE
Current Liabilities REBEE
Payables and accrued charges ERFIENEREA 24
Lease liabilities HEAE 25
Tax payables e R IE
Promissory notes E R 27
Total Current Liabilities BB EAE
Net Current Assets BRBEE
Total Assets Less Current HWEERRBERE

Liabilities
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2025 2024
2025 2024 %
RM’000 RM'000

P A =
=a=] T2F

3,763
428
349

3,466

22,395 8,006

1,800

12,485

40

35

10
21,089
7,142

42,601

10,145
405
218

3,446

14,214

28,387

36,393




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
me BRI R

AS AT 31 MAY 2025
72025 5H31H

2025
2025 &£

RM'000

A=t
<A

Non-Current Liabilities ERBEE

Lease liabilities HEBaE 25 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFIE B (& 26 95
Promissory notes HH R 27 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities ERBEBEHEEE 95
Net Assets BEE 36,298
Capital and Reserves EXR#E

Share capital [i% 7% 28 6,028
Reserves & 29 30,270
Total Equity FEFBEE 36,298

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 167 were &R FE 66 E 167 B R4 A MR K 2 72025
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 A29H mES SR EWHETIE - X B

29 August 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: T EERKRESE:
Loh Swee Keong Yau Ka Hei

BxRE
Director Independent Non-Executive Director
BEF BUIBITEFE

The notes on pages 73 to 167 form an integral part of these SF73F 167 EWTHER I ZEE M BRED
consolidated financial statements. — 5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZED X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025
HE202545A318IEFE

Share Share Other Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses
TS R &R E HitweE BN REFE

(note 28)  (note29@)  (note 29b)  (note 29(c))
#28)  (WiE29@)  (BF290)) 729())
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

TLE EF ] TLE

At 1 June 2023 R2023F6F 18 5438 28,059 8,579 50 6,951) 35,175
Profit for the year FRRF - - - - 108 108
Exchange differences arisingon  #E G EBELH

translation of foreign operations & 3 = %8 - - - 410 - 410
Total comprehensive income FRNEERALEE

for the year - - - 410 108 518
Issue of subscription shares FRMEELRER

by newily allotted ordinary BIIRBRG

shares (rote 28(a)) (Hi:£28) 590 15 - - - 605
At 31 May 2024 R2024E58 318 28,074
At 1 June 2024 R2024%6 A1H 28,074 (6,843)
Profit for the year ERE T - 82
Exchange differences arising BEBNEBEED

on translation of foreign EHER

operations
Total comprehensive income FREABALE

for the year
Issug of subscription shares ERFEEEAR

by newly allotted ordinary BIIRERS

shares (note 28(b)) (Hiz2810) 1,237 1,237
At 31 May 2025 R2025%5A31R 7,265 28,074 8,579 (6,761) 36,708

The notes on pages 73 to 167 form an integral part of these F73Z=167 B W EK I E45 46 BB HRE D
consolidated financial statements. —&H5 .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REHRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025
HE202545A3181LFE

2025 2024
2025 2024 %
RM’000 RM'000

P PAN =
< A ~< H

OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETR
Profit/(loss) before taxation B ATE 1 (E518)
— From continuing operations — REFELEEL 1,632
— From a discontinued operation — RECRIEEEER (385)
1,247
Adjustments for: HATEIBELFE
Depreciation of: INTEIBETE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERZE 685
Investment property A 4
Right-of-use assets EREEE 568
Intangible assets mILAE -
Allowance for credit losses, net EEEERBTE 870
Finance costs LR 133
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMZED
plant and equipment I z& (136)
Share of results of an associate o fh— B E A B A 67
Unrealised (gain)/losses on foreign KEIEINE (W), EiE
exchange 84
Interest income FEWA (764)
Operating profit before working capital EEESEBRIALSE R
changes 2,630
Movements in working capital: EEELEE
Decrease/(increase) in: TEEER D, (38M) :
Inventories FE 204
Receivables, deposits and JEUWGRIA ~ e RFERTR
prepayments (1,492)
Increase/(decrease) in: T BB, CRd)
Payables and accrued charges FETRRIE R FERT B R (888)
Net cash generated from operations EEMGREFE 454
Income tax paid ERAEH (895)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETBME (TR RS
operating activities FEE (447)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025
HE202545A318IEFE

2025 2024
2025 F 2024 &
RM’000 RM'000
°LHE F2H
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received 2R S 764
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) U B — MM B AR (BF7£30) -
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BELEEE
equipment (560)
Payments of right-of-use assets EREEEMNK -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE BERREZ
plant and equipment FiS §E 137
(Increase)/decrease in pledged short- EEAEARITER
term bank deposits (3gm),m 915
Advance from/(to) a shareholder ’E—BREH
(M—H&REEL) BF (23)
Advance (to)/from ultimate holding (AEFREERARIELR),
company KB IR RIH B R 4
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTA)/FiERE
investing activities R (12,132) 1,237
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RESER
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM TS FIA 605
Finance costs paid B TRLE AR (10)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEZERED (625)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BNHEES2FE55 (24)
Repayment of promissory note BEALEE -
Net cash used in financing activities RVEEB TR FH (54)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH iﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W) nEEE 742
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ¢%JJ REeRESZEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,948
Effects of exchange differences EHEENTE 329
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT &EXRRERBESZEEY
END OF YEAR (note 23) (Kt7#23) 28,019

The notes on pages 73 to 167 form an integral part of these $73E167 B W EB K It Z42 4 BB R KX
7 e

consolidated financial statements. —&f
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GENERAL INFORMATION

WS-SK Target Group Limited (formerly known as SK Target
Group Limited) (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 28 October 2016 and its
ordinary shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 19 July 2017.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business are Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and 18, Jalan LP
2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana, 43300 Seri Kembangan, Selangor
Darul Ehsan, Malaysia, respectively.

Merchant World Investments Limited (“Merchant World"),
a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate holding company of
the Company. Mr. Loh Swee Keong, is the ultimate controlling
party of the Company who wholly owns Merchant World.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and trading
of precast concrete junction boxes, trading of accessories
and pipes and provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary
services in Malaysia, sourcing service of materials in Hong
Kong. The Group discontinued its sales of health supplement
products in Hong Kong in 2024. Since January 2025, the Group
started to engage in the e-commerce platform in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiary companies are set out in note 35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

—REHR

BIEmREEAERAR (A EKEEE
BRAR) ([A&27])K20164F 10 A28
HRASHETEMALABERAA -
BEEBABREB2017F7A198 R
BEABEXSMARRAA ([HIAT])
CEM L - =Rt R =2 & %
i 24 55 Bl A& Windward 3, Regatta Office
Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands }2 18, Jalan
LP 2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana, 43300
Seri Kembangan, Selangor Darul Ehsan,
Malaysia °

Merchant World Investments Limited
(TMerchant World | © —REHBE K
HE((RBELZBEE DMK INBR
NE) RARABNEZERELZER AT
Loh Swee Keong 5t 4 & 78 2 7 8 fx 4245
#l75 - 32 & ¥ B Merchant World °
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MWEEZXEBRNERADREERRE
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SURRHBB A EERBERREER
% REEREMHEERS - A&E
2024 F 42 IF BN B AR IS R E @
¥ o B2025F1HR  ALEBE RS
RPEARANE ((HEDREEFY
BEE - MBARMNEEHER AT
B HIFESS ©
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) to these

consolidated financial statements for the current accounting

period:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 and  Supplier Finance Arrangements
IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

The application of the amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards in the current year had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

For the new and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective, please refer to note 41.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R MR

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable IFRS
Accounting Standards, which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASS")
and Interpretations issued by the IASB, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as “the Group”) are
disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards which are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 May 2025 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). These
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Ringgit Malaysia (“RM"), rounded to the nearest thousand
(RM'000), unless otherwise stated. RM is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group's presentation
currency.

3.

ERETHHEBME

(@)

AR
ZEREMBRRDRRER S
FAERE SR M 2 AERN
BN B A5 s 2R R B At 2R Rl (L AR
T8 B 9% AT 6 B 0 M8 1) BRI B 7%
HEER  BEREEL ((EE
B ER ) KRB A RBE AR
GO RERERHE -REHE
B 75 3R IR AT B B X P GEM & 5
A (TGEM LT R A &3
RWESR - AR AR EWME R
A(RERIAER]) IRMZE
REFTHEBBEMT ©

B et EREEeCBEAE T
RARERTEFHRBERERK
A IR R RN KT EER R
BmEE G ER - 28R H
RNEXRERZFETMEEME
AEBRITIEE S B HERA
VTHEZEGEAVBREARRZ
TR BRREFNER -

HZE2025%5A31H IEFEMHE
B ERRPEARA KENE

NCIY

AEBSERMBHRRAEBEZ
HEDRAZREREEME
TEEERR 2GS ([HEER])
FEREFRAVBRERIIINE
XAG<E ([€F) 29 K=
ERAN BRSBHNEER
BN THHE(TSE) - AR
ZHREEERAEE 228
BRTE -

BIEmmEmAa R AT /2025 4F 5 75



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

76

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS Accounting Standards requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRS Accounting Standards that have a significant
effect on the financial statements and major source of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R MR

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
companies. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary company begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary company
and ceases when the Group loses control over the
subsidiary company. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary company acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of a subsidiary company to bring its
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment

/8

The following items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 3(g)):

— interests in leasehold land and buildings where
the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest (see note 3 (h));

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment (see note 3 ()).

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment l0sses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposals. Any gain or 10ss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
a weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

80

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held
for sale, in which case it is or the portion so classified
is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any
retained portion of an investment in an associate that
has not been classified as held for sale continues to be
accounted for using the equity method. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments
have been made to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

WS-SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

3.

ERSTHBEBRE @)
( RBEQIRANRE @

BERNRCXBEUREEREE
NEREEFTAREGRAMK
WL ERMREXDBOIREDE
REFELE  RULBERT » HaH
o $8 2 #B oy BIAR 4% B R B 7% ¥
HEAZESRIIEHE CIERDE
EREHRIEEEEBR AR &
DERFELENBERTRE

B ERE A D BB ERE
AR -G ETRAENBE R
A mRIRERNEERAL
ERTHEURZ REHERA

%-ﬁ(ﬁ’ﬂ@ﬁﬂl%ﬁ%ﬁ%‘w EfE
AR E QR E AR
REAEEN ST BE —@Z ° 1R

BiEzmE RBEARZREY
*&&ﬁFFA%%#R%%w’
Fﬁ&ﬁ%-ﬁﬁlﬁmﬁ%
ARz B R H 2 s T
A - BEARRFEE (B
REAMEEBERIN EBTEA
R BRIFZZFEHERAERF
EMFAEEEZLEEH - E2X
EEELEE QR ZEBBEA
SERZBE AR R (BIEE
BIBRASERBEARIKRE
PR 2 AR R EAER) B
REBRIFTEREELEZE—F
BE-ERAEBEEEEETER
ﬁ*iﬁiﬁ%%%%“Tﬁm
T EREREEINEE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Investment in an associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or l0ss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

82

Investment in an associate (Continued)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or 10ss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

WS-SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

3.

BERETHRBE )
( RBEQIRANRE @

EAEBTHEBMEARHASE
AEENE AARIELEER
BEHRM2BER  MEENK
ok B R R B = Wﬁuo%$i
BIRBRAIEE AR 2R
ZIRB %‘El%%%ﬁ%@%
FOFHEANZ CREER - AIR
SEeRZAKEAFENERE
Bm - MEZAFESEAERYS
BREZAFE -BE QAR
AEETARBED DSBS
ARIHEESOTEERIEN
AFEZHEMNZRE gRETH
EHE A RNRE BB AR -
o REEEKBEREMS
EBWAGRBERRERZES
BRBEANFERLEREEE
IEBBEFMRAZEREEAR A
b WEE A RRT R EMEE
WARER W R EEBR L&
ﬁ%ﬁéi%f%éﬁ\ﬁzﬁ
m AAEEREE Ho
W%MM“TMHWm&%Em
BRnENOEEES(FEREHMS
ERE) -

A ER K&
@%thﬁﬁ%\ 5o IAFT A HE
R REEEHRHE TS ENT
EAFE-

o

EARSEEIREREE AR
BEREDBEBERAERER
fiaf 38 7 70 H At 2 T R A BT RERR 2
HIBPrER S G R 2 & e
SERERNLENBEESRAR
HREFHDEERD MAEES
Bzl EREN D BERR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(g)

Investment in an associate (continued)
When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

84

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross earning amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R MR

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 including receivables and deposits, amount
due from ultimate holding company, amount due
from a shareholder, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the management’'s assessment on
the individual customer’s credit risk grading dependent
on the customer’s financial performance, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the 10ss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLS. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial asset measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL") are not subject to the ECL assessment.

86

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed as at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without resources by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external or

internal credit rating (if available);

. an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

88

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes the following observable
events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the debtor,

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation,

(d) significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liguidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information.

Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

90

Financial assets (Continuea)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(v}  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group
entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

The Group’s other financial liabilities including payables
and accrued charges are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the considerations paid and payable is recognised in
profit or 1oss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R MR

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)

92

)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see notes 3(c) and 3(h)), except for the following
types of right-of-use asset:

— right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property in accordance with note
3(d); and

— right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land and buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the leasehold interest are
carried at cost in accordance with note 3(c).

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits
is accounted for separately from the right-of-use
assets in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt securities carried
at amortised cost (see notes 3(g)). Any difference
between the initial fair value and the nominal value
of the deposits is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)

)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has
taken advantage of the practical expedient not to
assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)

94

)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve

months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

(ii) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the

case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income

from operating leases is recognised.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption, then the Group classifies the sub-

lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

()

(k)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other receivables
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
All receivables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method and including an
allowance for credit losses (see note 3(g)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 3(g), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at invoice amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out
in note 3(g).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

96

Revenue

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

J the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when

the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Revenue (continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does not
control the specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred to the
customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided by the
other party.

3.

BEAETHEBRE®)
(VR ONE )
EEAHEREA

BlEmEEB AR AT /2025 F 3K

ER—ARFERTEFREHARMNL
R AREBEREAFNEER
EERRERETEMmARBG A S
MEANES BIAKRESZEAN)
gLl E - REZEERL
A% (AIAREBARIEA)

fie 75 55 B FE [7) 25 P 4 5 7 o K AR
52 AT E I 45 7€ 7 am Sk AR 75 - Al
AEBRETEA

HWARENBETEHERLHS —
TRHIETENE MRS RIAR
SEAREA-EREBRT &
HEmRBEERTERZA
AEBTEG S —TRENEE
Bmk iR - EAKESKEA
B B AIER S — R P EH
H 46 7E 7 an 2k R TS TR HA B UG
BRI E A S & BRIERUA -

97



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(m) Employee benefits

98

)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and non-monetary
benefits are recognised as expense in the period
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Short-term non-
accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave are recognised when the absences occur.

Retirement benefits costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions. The Group has no further
payment obligations once these contributions have
been paid.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be
offsetted as a deemed employee contribution
towards the LSP obligation in term of IAS 19
paragraph 93(a) and it is measured on a net
basis. The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative service
cost arising from the accrued benefits derived from
the Group’s MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(n) Foreign currency

)

(ii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or l0ss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the Company initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.

Translation reserve

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are expressed in Ringgit
Malaysia using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that year, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(0) Taxation

100

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of each reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at
the time of transaction does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R MR

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(0) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any,
is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i a B RS R R MR

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Taxation (continued)

102

Deferred tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R MR

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to Mr.
Loh Swee Keong, the director of the Group (the chief
operating decision maker) for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(q) Intangible asset

()

104

Intangible asset include those acquired through business
combination. Intangible asset acquired through business
combinations are recognized as asset separate from
goodwill if they satisfy either the “contractual legal” or
“separability” criterion. Intangible assets arising from
business combinations are measured at fair value
upon acquisition using valuation technigues such as
discounted cash flow analysis and ratio analysis with
reference to comparable companies in similar industries
under the income approach, market approach and cost
approach. Major assumptions used in determining the
fair value of these intangible assets include future growth
rates and weighted average cost of capital. Purchased
intangible asset is initially recognized and measured at
cost upon acquisition. Separately identifiable intangible
asset that have determinable lives continue to be
amortized over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method as follows:
E-commerce platform 5years
Goodwill

The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(s)

Goodwill (continued)

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value
of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities
and assets meets the definition of a business and control
is transferred to the Group. In determining whether
a particular set of activities and assets is a business,
the Group assesses whether the set of assets and
activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired set has
the ability to produce outputs.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next 12 months.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

The Group uses simplified approach in calculating allowance
of ECL for trade receivables by applying an ECL rate. The ECL
rate is determined based on the management'’s assessment
on the individual customer’s credit risk grading dependent
on the customer’s financial performance, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
at the reporting date and forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable without undue cost or effort,
including time value of money where appropriate. At each
reporting date, the ECL rate is remeasured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers under IFRS 15:

Continuing operations BESEXER

5. WARZEHER
(@) BIFRAIEI|EERF 155

HNEFENRAZDE

Year ended
31 May 2025
B ZE 2025
5A31H
LEFE

Total
st
RM’000

a1
< A

Year ended
31 May 2024
B = 2024 F

5H31H
IEFEE
Total
st
RM'000

A==
~< H

Manufacturing and trading: ERES

Sales of manufactured goods RIK MIHE 29,468 29,287
Other building materials and E @i B kAR :

services:

Sales of building materials BEMBHE 1,760 1,394
E-Commerce platform EFEBEEE 327 -
Total RET 31,555 30,681
Geographical market: IR T

Malaysia Bk 30,681

China Fh _
Total 4T 30,681
Timing of revenue recognition LT e 5 B ]

At point in time L E 2 31,555 30,681
Sales of manufactured goods and building BEmREEMBHEE

materials

Revenue from sales of manufactured goods and
building materials is recognised at a point in time when
the manufactured goods and building materials are
transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtains the control of the manufactured goods
and building materials; and the Group has present right to
payment and collection of the consideration is probable.

Sk m PIEEM BN EERAR
X BEREMHERITERPK
REHER NEPESEHMKR
RZEM B IE I - RAEE
REAENRE - BRERYRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

5.

108

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers under IFRS 15: (Continued)

Sourcing services

The Group acts as an agent when its performance
obligation is to arrange for provision of specified materials
by another party to customer. The Group does not control
the specified materials. Therefore, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount of commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified

materials to be provided by the other party.

E-Commerce platform

The Group provides transaction services, and earns
related fees for sales of the products completed on
our platforms. The Group does not take control of
the products provided by merchants at any point in
time during the transactions. Revenues related to
transaction services are recognized in consolidated
statements of comprehensive income at a point in time
when the Group's service obligation to the merchants
is determined to have been completed under each
sales transaction completed. Variable consideration
is estimated and included in the transaction price to
the extent that it is probable that a significant revenue

reversal will not occur.

(b) Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The Group has applied practical expedient in IFRS 15:
paragraph 121 (a) and (b) to not disclose the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
which are part of contracts that have original expected

duration of one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment

Information reported to Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the director
of the Group, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance is based on the
following reportable and operating segments identified

under IFRS 8 Operating Segments:

(@ Manufacturing and trading — manufacturing and

trading of precast concrete junction boxes;

(b)  Other building materials and services — trading
of accessories and pipes and provision of mobile

crane rental and ancillary services;

(c)  Sourcing services — provision of sourcing services,

(d)  Sales of health supplement products — sourcing

and sales of health supplement products; and

(e) E-Commerce platform — sourcing and sales of

products online.

No operating segments identified by the CODM have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments

of the Group.

The operations of sourcing services and sales of health
supplement products were discontinued in the current
period. The following segment information does not
include any amount for the discontinued operations,

which is described in more details in note 11.

The Group commenced the e-commerce platform during
the year ended 31 May 2025 and thus one new segment
is resulted and included in the segment reporting and no
comparative information for this new segment for the

year ended 31 May 2024 is presented.

5.

WAR T HER (&)

(c)

BlEmEEB AR AT /2025 F 3K

z«< Aé. FaN ALB

HERPERDBRIBEFTEED
ifii 7] 7 £ [# E = Loh Swee Keong
EEGIEREZREN(TEHRER
BREAD)ERHER - DIET
AR 4% B B B s e 2E I 38 8 R A
B BRI A R E RS E D B
e -

@ HEMBS -BRERL
ERSNRERES

(b) EHMEEMEERYE — B
HREBEIULRREED
ANEERBEEMEERS

© KBRS — RERBRS

d) HEREBER — RBRHE
EREEmM R

© BIEHFA
RHEER -

— R EREB

S e S DLETREEE
I 6 S 5 o AT R A
BRIEE DT -

RERFGMHERBEMEHC
RABEZ L TH o BERL
TEEEACRIEEEXRBESER
FIEH2HMEN -

NEBPREE2025F5 8318 1b
FEHBRERETEHFEE E
MEE—EHDE  WERKAD
EaR s mEL=20244 5831 H
IEFEWESNZI DI LR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARDER &)
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued) (c) BEDI (&)
Segment revenues and results PHBBAREE
For the year ended 31 May 2025 BZE2025F5A31ALFEE
continuing operations FFERE R

oOther building
Manufacturing  materials and E-Commerce
and trading services platform Total
Hith 5

RERES HRERE EFEETAE st
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A =* A+ A+ A =x
<A <A <A <A

Revenue LON

External sales INERSHE 29,468 31,555
Segment result N EE 8,764 9,387
Allowance for credit loss EEEERE (666)
Administrative expenses TRHY (5,539)
Selling and distribution HERAHAZ

expenses (1,857)
Finance costs BERA (143)
Other income HilA 1,036
Share of results of HE—RHE

an associate NGIES (523)
Profit before taxation BRE AR I 1,695
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARDBER (&)
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued) (c) R&EDH (&)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DWBAREE (&)

BZE2024F5831HILLEE

For the year ended 31 May 2024
Continuing operations (Continued)

Other building

Manufacturing materials and
and trading services Total
HhEs
2ERES MR R AR HEt
RM'000 RM'000 RM’'000
5 5 e
(Restated)
€<=2))

Revenue A

External sales SNEB $H 29,287 1,394 30,681
Segment result DEPELE 8,245 314 8,559
Allowance for credit loss EEBBEES (526)
Administrative expenses TR (5,936)
Selling and distribution HE RO HRAX

expenses (1,356)
Finance costs A& A AR (133)
Other income E A 963
Share of results of ol — R &

an associate NGIE = 61
Profit before taxation PR 5 AT A 1,632

BlEmasEEAR AT /2025 F 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBHRRHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies as described
in note 3. Segment results represents the profit from
each segment without allocation of administrative
expenses, selling and distribution expenses, finance
costs, other income and taxation. This is the measure
reported to CODM for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

As at 31 May 2025
Continuing and discontinued operations

Other
building

Manufacturing - materials and

and trading

RERRA
RM000

A%
XA

Non-Current assefs e 6,647
Clrent asses nHEE 29,108
Non-current liabiles e (2,720)
Current liabites et (7.956)

112

services
Heg
AR
RM'000

At
XA

19
1301

(1,107)
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5. WARZDEESR (&)

(c)

E-Commerce
platform

BT
RM'000

At
YA

151
23
73)

(456)

REDE (&)
DEWBAREE (&)

RED AR S BEREM 3
MASE S BEAER - 28X
BIOERIETRAS #HER
DA BERA - AU A
R R & 2 BE S - 1t A5
BRDERKRBFEEOMBRSE
TEHREERRANGTET A -

THMEERER
TXREARERGEDWE D
MAREEENBBESIT

R2025%F5A31H
FRERDRILEERT

Consolidated
assets
(liabilities)
hREE
(BE)

Segment
assets
(liabilities)
A9EE
(Bf)

Discontinued
operations
BALE
flezy
RM'000 RM'000

At At
YA XA

Unallocated

#7E
RM000  RM000

Ax Ax
XA XA

6,817
30,702
(2,793)
9,519

15,578
1,391
(3,567)
(1,069)

22,395
32,768

675

(1,507)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARDBER (&)
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued) (c) BEDI (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHEERAEE)
As at 31 May 2024 "2024%5H831H
Continuing and discontinued operations FER OISR

Other
building Segment Consolicated
Manufacturing ~ materialsand  E-Commerce asSets Discontined ASSets
and trading Servioes platform (iabilties)  Unallocated (iabilties)

*AR
RMO00

TR

Non-Current assefs FRBEE 370 B - 3763 12 - 8,008

Curent asses RYEE 31640 704 - 38684 2715 1202 401

Nor-current lisbiites e (%) - - (%) - - )
Current igbiies REAR (7,144 (1,940) - (9,084) (3499) (1,639) (14.214)
All assets and liabilities are allocated to operating e TFERRTRS  HEME
segments other than certain cash on hand and at bank, NRE - RBRECHEEER
other payables, current and deferred tax assets and BEN MBEEERBESIEZR
liabilities. KR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARDER &)
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (Continued) (c) BEDI (&)
Other segment information H fh 5 EB & B}
For the year ended 31 May 2025 BZE2025F5A31ALFEE
continuing operations FEE R

Other building
Manufacturing materials and E-Commerce
and trading services platform Total
Hit2 %

REREZ  MRREE S¥HEEYS st
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A+ A =x A=+ A%
<A <R <R <R

Amounts included in the BREEFEAHET
measure of segment FEERDHBEE
profit or loss or He®:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current REFRDEE
assets
For the year ended 31 May 2024 BE2024F5A831ALEE
continuing operations RS E RS

Other building
Manufacturing ~ materialsand  E-Commerce
and trading Services platform

Hips
PR R
RM'000 RM000

A=+ A+
X A < A

Amounts included in the BREEFEAHET
measure of segment FEBANDEE
profit or loss or He®:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current REFRBEE
assets 560 - - 560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (continued)
Geographical information
The Group earns revenue from external customers in two
main geographical areas:

() Malaysia — manufacturing and trading; and other
building material and services

(i) China— e-commerce platform
Information about the Group’s revenue from external

customers is presented based on the location of the
operations, as follows:

Continuing operations FREEEER
Malaysia P itk
China S|

5. WARZDEER (4)

(c) Ben& &)

AEEBEMETIEMEINEEP
FREUVIKA -

() FBRAD —-2ERES K
H 32 S8R KBRS

(i) HE—FEFEBKFA

BRAKERAIMNEERPBAR
BRDIREBHE2500T

2025
2025 &

RM'000

P —
<ITa

30,681

30,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARDER &)
(Continued)
(c) Operating Segment (Continued) (c) R&EDH (&)
Geographical information (Continued) wEER (&)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of WTAEEEFMEHEE S B D
segment assets, capital addition in respect of property, HEE VE BE MK EE
plant and equipment by the geographical areas in which BEWERMED T

the assets are located:

Non-current assets
HRBEE
2025

2025 F
RM’000

A%
<A

Malaysia 16,707

China H 5,688 3,466
22,395 8,006

Information about major customers FTEEFEHR

No customers contribute over 10% of total revenue of BEEP ARNEEH E2025F5

the Group for the year ended 31 May 2025 (2024: nil). ANHIEFEMNREEEERE

10% (2024 4F : f&) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

6. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 6. EEMe
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors RIEE SR BEPI 5 383 & A 7] (3
of the Company disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) of the BEENGER ROIE2HMEEN
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ENSRENAAGEENMSFFBNT

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

For the year ended 31 May 2025 BZ202565A31BLFE

Executive
Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
BTES BUFHYTES
Mr. She
Mr. Loh Mr. Chu [ AE Shing  Mr.Kwok  Ms. Chan

Swee Keong Kin Ming KaHei  AlbertMa TszHin  Sheung Yu
Loh Swee

Keong4 A@#HEE BRELE FFERE BFHEE  REAxT

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Ax Ax Ax Ax Ax Ak
R XA XA XA XA <A

Directors:

Fees ik
Bonus bzl
Other emoluments: EthEm

Contributions to Employees ~ EEAES
Provident Fund (‘EPF')(hote)  ([EEARES])
(it

Total @t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

6. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continuead) 6. EEME )
For the year ended 31 May 2024 BZ202455A831BLFE

Executive
Directors Indlependent Non-executive Directors
H1ES BUFHOES
Mr. She
Mr. Loh Mr. Chu Mr. Yaul Shing Mr. Kwok Ms. Chan

Swee Keong Kin Ming Ka Hei Albert Ma TszHin - Sheung Yu
Loh Swee

keongik  KEMZE HRERE BFRERE  HTERA
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000

THE  FAE TAE TR TéR

Directors; B

Fees ik 715 20 15 45 17 - 842
Bonus Tt 800 - - - - - 800
Other emoluments: EREH

Contributions to Employees  EEATES

Provident Fund ('EPF’) ([(EELES))

(Note) ik3f (Hrzt) 136 - - - - - 13

Total &t 1,651 20 45 45 17 - 1778
Note: Htat -
The Group is required by Malaysian law to make monthly BRADEGZRAEEIR AMEE AR
contributions to the EPF, a statutory defined contribution plan for SRR HARBEEERHFMOE T3]
all its eligible employees based on certain prescribed rates of the ALLR - RATAMEEAREERMEER
employees’ applicable remuneration. Contributions are charged to FEH-RAE S - HRAEBHAMIEEN
profit or loss in the period in which they relate. The contributions BReEEAESNERAEZRHE - MM
to EPF are disclosed separately and the contributions to EPF are EERAESELNERG AT - 1E4
included in salaries, bonuses, allowances and other staff benefits. EREREMEERT c —BEHMH - K
Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further SEMEE - TSHKET - RRRFE
payment obligations. No forfeited contribution is available to %4 ] SR R R BRI R o

reduce the contribution payable in future year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRHE

6. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continuea)
During the years ended 31 May 2024 and 2025, ho emoluments
were paid by the Group to the Directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of the office.

No Directors’ emoluments were waived during the years ended
31 May 2024 and 2025.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Group and of the Company. The Independent Non-
executive Directors’ emoluments were for their services as
Directors of the Company.

7. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included 1 (2024 1) Director whose remuneration are set out in
Note 6. The remuneration for the remaining 4 (2024: 4) highest
paid employees who are neither a Director nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

e RoEah
TE4L
BEERAESHRK

Salaries and allowances
Bonuses
Contributions to EPF

6. EEME @
HE2024F K 2025F5 A3 HIEFE -
PN SJE T 2 S i NY/NECT == S s I
©  ERMAREB SR INAKRE B R
B SRR S E R B AR E o

B ZE2024F 20255 A31 HIEFE -
MEEENERMNE -

IO ITEEME D EERRE
RUAMEEAKERARAEHHIR
BRASME - BYRRTESZME T
RREERE QB EEMIRHRE Z AT
SMz -

7. DERBHMEA
RAFE AEELERSHHEAS
14 (20245 12) EF - B H
FBEHERMES - T 4% (20244 : 4
B)REHMER GEARRESHTE
TTERAR) ROF BN E ST -

2025
2025 £

RM'000

P —
<Ia

723 707

40 115
122 109
885 931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

7. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) 7. DEESHMEA &)
The number of the highest paid individuals (other than the UTEHISSEMEA (EEBRIN) (F
directors) whose remuneration fell within the following bands BT AT EE) A AS -
is as follows:

Nil to HKD1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 % 7T

During the years ended 31 May 2024 and 2025, ho emoluments HZE2024F % 2025F5 A3 B ILFE -
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid employees AEBTEAALATAEZRS HHES
of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the SR EEME - EAIMARSE B SN
Group or as compensation for loss of the office. AR EE o) ZEN S E AR E -

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BMERAK

2025
2025 £
RM’000

A+
T8

Continuing operations HEREER

Interest expense on lease liabilites FHEEEMNFEMX 24
Commitment fees EHE 10
Interest expense on promissory notes # 5, Z & F 8 5 99

133
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting):
Continuing operations

Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense
Staff costs, excluding directors'’
remuneration:
— Salaries, wages and other
benefits
— Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Short-term lease payments not
included in the measurement of
lease liabilities:

Crane
Office equipment

Depreciation of:

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

(Reversal of allowance)/allowance
for credit losses, net:
Trade receivables
Deposits paid

Rental income from investment
property

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest income on:
Deposits at bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

9. FRBLAEF
BRI AT FINER 7 (REA) AT B IR R =
B
FECERER

2024
2024 €
RM'000

A=

(RENEIE))
(#&E75)

A% S5 R 357 B
— BZRS 498
BRRAZHFERAE
15,995
BIRA  THEES
M
—¥He TAREMET
3,510
— BRIKEFEHEIME
281
3,791
KRt AGFEHEAED
REEENK
B B 42
MARE 8
NTEEFE :
M - B R 685
wEYHE 4
ERAEEE 568
EmREE -
(FEBBRERR),
EEEBBREETE
Z 5 WA 94
Effike 432
526
BEWMEHRSHA
1)
HEWE - REREHED
W s (136)
ITEEZFEWA
RITIF (764)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

10. TAXATION 10. BiE

Continuing operations FEREEK
Malaysia corporate income tax: HRFE B REMER
Current year KEFE

(Over)/under-provision of income BEFEMER
tax in prior year (EBFERE)
BETE
Deferred tax (Note 26): RIERIIE (et 26)

Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory tax
rate of 24% (2024 24%) on the estimated assessable profits for
each of the assessable year.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at a rate of 16.5%
(2024: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year,
except for a subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. For
this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25%, and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5%. Such basis had been applied for the calculation of the
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary for the
year ended 31 May 2025.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the years
ended 31 May 2024 as there is no assessable profits for both
years.
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2025
2025 F

RM'000

A4
<A

1,099

76

1,175

(36)

1,139

BT R E S B E R
f 18 R 3 5 5 249% (2024
% 1 20%) B H -

BEREFEH BB FARZ T ERTG
42 16.5% (2024 F : 16.5% ) 2 B E &t
o WASE—HNBRR ARG M
BB THEERARIRIN  RZHB R
AT E © & 2,000,000 % JT & FE 5F B O
T 12 8.25% B B R BT - HeRFE R B
) B4R 16.5% B Bt R BB - & 2= 20254
SA3ALEE  ZEXECERNTE
B AR 2 BEFESHEE -

BAREE2024F5A8318 IEFE T &
FERRBOEF - B B Z W EF E 5T
BTN S T B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. B\ (&)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FEHBHBRBMADEMMHRAOT

taxation as follows:

2025
2025 %
RM’'000

A==

<Ia

2024
2024 5
RM'000
F<&iH

(Restated)
(& &=51)

Profit before taxation B B4 AT 8

— From continuing operations — REFELEER 1,632
Statutory tax rate ETERE 24%
Taxation at applicable statutory REREEBEFTER

tax rate g 392
Tax effects of: NTEIBENRGTE
Expenses not deductible for EEE b

tax purpose 234
Income not taxable for tax purpose  B/BREL A (283)
Tax effect of share of profits of DG HE & A J) R Y

associates Mg (10)
Effect of different tax rate of entities ~ H EH At Bl A R £ L 1Y

operating in other jurisdictions EERNTRREZE 212
(Over)/under-provision of income tax @7 F € T 1553

in prior year (FBRERE) BB TRE 76
Tax effect of tax losses not REERBIIAE R

recognised Mg 518
Taxation for the year FEHIE 1,139

BlEf@EBHR QT /2025 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. ERLREXK

The sales of health supplements business and the sourcing
services of materials business were discontinued during the
year due to change in business strategy and management has
dedicated more resources to the development, manufacturing
and trading of precast concrete junction boxes business.
Therefore, the decision was made to cease operations in the
health supplements and the sourcing services of materials
business in order to consolidate resources for continuing
operations or other business opportunities. These discontinued
segments are classified as “Discontinued Operations” in 2024.

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been
included in the loss for the year, were as follows.

Other income Habug A

Allowance for credit loss, net EEEEREFSR

Administrative expenses TEAX

Loss before taxation bR AT E 18

Loss for the year from the REBRIEEEEBR
discontinued operations and KRNRHEE AEIG
attributable to owners at the FNEBE
company

Loss for the year from the REERIEEEEE 2
discontinued operations FABBIEMBR(GEA)
is derived after charging/ AT &R :
(crediting) the following:

Auditor’s remuneration % BRRT BN &

Unrealised (gain)/loss on
foreign exchange

RERINE (Wzs), /B8

Cash used in discontinued
operations

Net cash used in operating activities 4 & BB FT AR €55

ERILREXBRARE

Net cash outflow R R FEE
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FR-REERBEEEH LB ERER
BEBERILE  DTHREHRENHK
g UREEEREZERANERE
RIRGENRE REREZFER -
R TE 12 L AR 2 B an S & TS I it
RBRBES  UREBRRETHE
REXGARREMEBHE - %252
RIMEED BN 2024F D ERIERIE

BRIMEEEBEE (Bt AFTAE
B)mT e

2025 2024
2025 % 2024 F

RM’'000 RM'000

Ao A
Ed= Ed=)

63 -
(424) (344)
41

(385)

(385)

37




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRHE

12. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share is based

12. BREF (FiR)

SREXRRFH (BER) HRE T BERT

on the following data: 5
2024
2024 £
(Restated)
(FE5)
Continuing operations BREEEER
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable RRTHER ANEIEERN
to the owners of the Company i )
(RM’000) (F2&F 493
Number of shares R4 E
Weighted average number of ERITELER
ordinary shares in issue ik RSk 16,008,173 13,575,591
Basic earnings per share R ERZF]
(RM cent per share) (FRU=ZF 3.00 3.63
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Loss B8
Loss for the year attributable RARIHE ANEEFER
to the owners of the Company &5 18
(RM'000) (F<& (385)
Number of shares R4 E
Weighted average number of EREITEER
ordinary shares in issue hniE 19 8 16,008,173 13,575,591
Basic loss per share FREREE
(RM cent per share) (FRI=Z (2.49) (2.83)
Continuing and discontinued BERCARLIREER
operations
Earnings el
Profit for the year attributable ARBHEAANERERA
to the owners of the Company i )
(RM'000) (F2&F 108
Number of shares vy 4=
Weighted average number of BEETEBR
ordinary shares in issue hnkEFHE 16,008,173 13,575,591
Basic earnings per share TR EARRF|
(RM cent per share) (BRU=EF 0.51 0.80

13.

Diluted earnings per share information equals basic earnings
per share for the years ended 31 May 2024 and 2025 as there
were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during both
years.

DIVIDENDS
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend for the years ended 31 May 2024 and 2025.

R E 2= 2024 F K2025F5A318 1t
FEHERBEINEEL B  WZW
EFEzERBERFNENSERER
EAREF] o

B
ARBESTERKNTEHE2024F K
20255 A3THIEFENRE -

13.

EIEHREBERAT /20255 K 125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BEREE
Leasehold
landand Plant and Motor Office  Computer
building machinery  vehicles Renovation Factory equipment software
HELH
kBT HEREH byt £ IR Ho%k EKEA
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000: RM'000
TRE & RE FRE 2F TLE
Carrying value BEE
At 1June 2023 RABEGH1H 25 2,998 2,334 653 2211 20 1,141 19 9,851
Additions AE - 35 49 - 9 - 21 - 560
Disposal ik - - - - - - 27 - o7
At 31 May 204 RAUE5 A3 B s 308 289 63 220 290 891 19 1040
At1June 2024 RAUEGA1H 15 3033 2829 653 2,20 250 891 19 10,140
Additions AE - 177 702 1221 1,790 - 35 - 3931
Disposal HE - (178 (509 - - - - - (681)
At 31 May 2025 RA5E5A318 5302 308 180 400 2% 96 9 13390

Accumulated depreciation  ZHiTE

At1June 2023 RABF6R1A 107 2174 1135 475 1,074 M 767 19 5962
Depreciation for theyear ~ £RFE 5 166 m % 1% 10 19 - 685
Disposal ik - - - - - - (270) - 270
At 31 May 2024 RAUES AN 12 2,340 1,358 511 1270 21 546 19 6,377
At June 2024 RAUF6R1H 112 2,340 1,358 511 1,270 21 546 19 6,377
Depreciation for theyear ~ £RFE 5 184 238 80 n 10 54 - 894
Disposal e - (179 (378) - - - - - (557)
At 31 May 2025 RABESASNE M7 2,345 1,218 591 1,593 231 600 19 6,714
Carrying value BEE

At 31 May 2025 RABESAINA 128 687 1,810 1,289 2417 19 326 - 6,676
At 31 May 2024 RAUESA3NE 133 693 1471 142 950 29 345 - 3,763
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

14.

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straightline
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building 2%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%
Renovation Over the remaining lease term — 20%
Mould 10%
Factory 10%
Office equipment 10%
Computer software 20%

The Group has pledged leasehold land and building with a
carrying value of approximately RM124,000 (2024: RM133,000)
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 34.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

FERNHEE TR
Pt W E
AR5 B

Ownership interests in
leasehold land held for own
use, carried at depreciated
cost

14.

15.

BR55 - M MRk
BT ERAGI R

Plant, machinery and
equipment, carried at
depreciated cost

(ii)

BlEmasEEAR AT /2025 F 3R

M- BERRE @
Tl E BERREER (ERTR
RSN AERERA T FRITE -

HETREF 2%
R 55 Be HE AR 10%
RE 10%
Rz LRI BT E — 20%
RA 10%
TR 10%
NS 10%
B 20%

AEEDEFEEEL 1240008 F
(20244 133,000 F) M E L b
BF  EAAEEMERN—IBTR
BRI (N FE3AFTHE) ©

EREEE

HHREERMNBONERREEZR
EFESTT

74

354

428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBHRRHE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-

use assets by class of underlying AREEETERY

asset;

Ownership interests in leasehold BEBRAMNHEE LA
land held for own use PR et

Plant, machinery and equipment B - e MR A

IR EERERIE D R

15. FRREEE &)
AN ERERNEE ZBXIEE ST
RN

2025
2025 %

RM'000

P —
<8

566

568

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 8)
Expense relating to short-term
leases

MEBEME (K8
RHHEER X

24

50

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets of
approximately RM10,060,000 (2024: nil). This amount related
to the capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements and prepaid land lease payment.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

The Group has pledged leasehold land with a carrying value of

approximately RM72,000 (2024: RM74,000) to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in note 34.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set out in note 25.
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RER - (EREEERNEL 10,060,000
S5 (2024 4F : &) - WA HEE W
#ETERNERMEEERE AN 1
HEFRBEERM -
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S ME R B IE R R - HE
BEETSREERNERR -

REECEMEREEL 72,0002 & (2024
F:740009F) WHEE LM ERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continuead)

16.

15. ERREEE #)

Notes: Htat -

(i) Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use () FHEERNHEHETHAREEER
The Group holds land under a 75-year lease for its AEBFEERBPAISFIEREER
manufacturing and trading and other building materials B 5 Rk E bR EM B &R % A
and services business, where its manufacturing facilities BH T HRERBEEZEUNZ
are primarily located. The Group is the registered owner EEF AEERZZMERER (B
of these property interests, including the whole or part of R 2 E o A 5 E
undivided share in the underlying land. Lump sum payments ME)NEZHEBA - AEBEDERL
were made upfront to acquire these property interests from SN—FRE UMEELES
their previous registered owners, and there are no ongoing ANEZEYE#Z BB TRIE
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease, RN RER TRREAEN =M
other than payments based on rateable values set by the SR BERERBIMEERRT
relevant government authorities. These payments vary from RHFENK - ZFBSRE SN
time to time and are payable to the relevant government TORESTHAE W A4EE AR
authorities. BEPT -

(i) ~ Other leases (i) HHEE
The Group leases production factory, machinery and office AREEZRBHABMNF2E3FHES
under leases expiring from 2 to 3 years. Some leases ERE BREBAE - LHHEE
include an option to renew the lease when all terms are BREMEGIENHEABRT
renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease EEHENERRE - -HEM T
payments. AT E MR -

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. BEWE

RM'000
AN+
< A

Cost R

At 1 June 2023, 31 May 2024, R2023F 6 A1H 20245 A831H -

1 June 2024 and 31 May 2025 2024F 6 H1H K 202595HA31H 450

Accumulated depreciation REIHE

At 1 June 2023 R2023F 6 A1H 97

Charge for the year F AR 4

At 31 May 2024 and 1 June 2024 R2024F5A31H K2024%F6 A1H 101

Charge for the year F AR 4

At 31 May 2025 20255 H31H 105

Carrying value IREE

At 31 May 2025 202595 A31H 345

At 31 May 2024 MR 20245 3318 349

BlEfmaEBAER AR /2025 F 1K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 16. REWEE (&)

The investment property, comprising of a freehold land and
building in Malaysia, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over
50 years.

Rental income earned by the Group from the investment
property which is leased out under operating leases, amounted
to nil for the year ended 31 May 2025 (2024: RM33,000).
Direct operating expenses incurred in respect of the
investment property that generate rental income amounted
to approximately RM2,000 and nil for the years ended 31 May
2024 and 2025 respectively. While direct operating expenses
incurred in respect of the investment property that did not
generate rental income amounted to approximately RM2,000
and nil for the years ended 31 May 2024 and 2025 respectively.

The fair values of the Group's investment property were
estimated by the directors at RM769,000 and RM900,000 at 31
May 2024 and 2025 respectively based on the valuation report
on the investment property in prior year and were updated to
reflect recent transactions involving similar properties in the
vicinity, using the direct comparison approach. The fair value is
classified as Level 3. The fair value of the Group's investment
properties was determined based on a valuation carried out
by Messrs Laurelcap Sdn. Bhd., independent and qualified
professional valuers who are not connected to the Group. In
estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best
use of the property is its current use. The operating leases do
not transfer the ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee
by end of lease term, and there is no option to purchase the
asset. The lessor manages the risk associated with any rights
it retains in underlying assets. Its risk management strategy
for these rights includes various means to reduce risk such as
exercising inspection rights subsequent to reasonable notice
and purchasing fire insurance.

The following table give information about how the fair value of
the investment property is determined.

REME (BRESREDKAXELH
KABF) HABBORIRS0F T EINE -

HE205F5A3MHIEFE  AEEH
wEYE(RBEEHEHA) BEmAE
WA BZT (20244 : 330005 F) - &
E2024F K 20255 A31HIEFE © 5t
EXASRANKEVMENMEENERE
BB DR AL2005FTRE &
E2024F K 20255 A31HIEFE © 5t
FEEHSBANENENMEEANE
BEE2ERYDRNA2005ERE -

R2024F K% 2025F5A31H HES
FrftsrAEBMEEMERITFED R
A769,0005 F K 900,000 5 © JiiR 1B
EFREYMENHERETBBRRAE
P EORE T LA S R 3T B S N R AR AT
HWERBUNENRZEEL - A FESE
BE=H AEBENREMELATFET
RIEB L KA B & E (H (BB Messrs
Laurelcap Sdn. Bhd. (H & 7 5= & IF 4 3
H)FTETHHEMETE - NMEeTwE
AFER MENTRRERRIIE
HERTAR KEHEEHERERE
TEREBEENMBREER LA
AN MEBEEZEEREEE - HHEA
ERERBRIEEEETREMEFAT
R e R o H R A E e B IR SR
BIERLZERNSER L WESE
BABTEREEREE R -

TREFMAEERENENATEZ
ax .

Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

EXTAEHEERAE BRE

Location A better location, such as near the city centre would result in
significant increase in fair value and vice versa.

& MEN B ME (FIRARA T R 0) BB A FENELEM Rz

Tenure A preferable tenure, such as freehold property demand higher
would result in significant increase in fair value and vice versa.

X RENFE(PIIKAERDE) FRERBER A FEKNEE
e RZIRA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. RBFEQRRNRE

Cost of investment in an associate Bt &R AR E Ak A
Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profits /& U & 1% (E518),/

and other comprehensive income i A K B b 2 T R 5
Exchange adjustments b 5 S

Place of
establishment and  Fully paid-up share
principal place of  capital and number
operation of shares

Bt R
TEEEMY

Name of associate

BENTAER

BRRERKROBE

China Coal Alliances Trading ~ Hong Kong HK$17,000,000 divided
Company Limited into 17,000,000 shares
FRERABESERAR FHE 17,000,000 7T *
2 £17,000,000 i [ 7

summarised financial information of material
associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

2025
2025 £

RM'000

A%
<A

3,244 3,244

(372) 151
(255) 71

2,617 3,466

Percentage of
ownership interests
held by the Group Principal activity
rEERERETRE
BHEEoL TEER
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
32% 32%  Trading of building
material
BENHES

EABMERNTAMBENRE

AEBMERBEREZHBEER B EH
IR c AT BERMEZSIBE N
AIREERYHREEN G ERER
ZHBBRATZEH -

ZE e N R RREEEN GRS B ®RE
AARR

BIER i EEAR AT /2025 F 1] 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. RBEQNTINERE ©®)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of material EABEATNMEERBE &)
associate (continued)
China Coal Alliances Trading Company Limited PEEXREEESZERAE

Current assets

Current liabilities MENBE 222
Net assets FEE 3,088
Group’s share of net assets rEEEEEEFE 988
Goodwill EES 2,426
Exchange adjustment PE 3 52
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBEREEE

interests 3,466

Revenue WA 1,967
(Loss)/profit for the period HA (BR),EH 190
Total comprehensive income AR AL

for the period 190

1 32 WS-SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2025



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

18. INTANGIBLE ASSET 18. ELEE

E-commerce
platform
BT

mETA

RM'000

A=
~< A

Cost D%
As at 1 June 2023, 31 May 2024 and M2023F 6 418 20245318 K

1June 2024 2024% 6 A1H -
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) Y BE —FE M B A 7w &= 4 (K721 30) 3,180
As at 31 May 2025 R202545A831H 3,180
Accumulated amortisation EEBHEREE

and impairment
As at 1 June 2023, 31 May 2024 and M2023F6 418 20245318 K

1June 2024 2024% 6 A1H -
Amortisation for the year FEHE 265
As at 31 May 2025 R202545A31H 265
carrying amount BREE
As at 31 May 2025 20255 A31H 2,915
As at 31 May 2024 MR2024F5H31H -
The above e-commerce platform was purchased as part of a THETFEBEEEIRAFTEEAER
business combination in this year. AN —HomMEE -
The above intangible asset has finite useful lives. Such LimpEEEAERACATE - 54
intangible asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over the | EAER TV BEREHAEN

following periods:

E-commerce platform 5years ETEB¥a 54

B a3 = @A R A 7 / 2025 5 1 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

19. GOODWILL 19. BHE
RM’000

Cost R
As at 1June 2023, 31 May 2024 and 1 June 2024 72023 6 418 ~ 20245 A 31 H
& 2024F 6 H1H

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) U B8 — R BT B 2 &) h 2= 4 (K722 30)

As at 31 May 2025 720255 HA31H 4

ZFtEESE
M2023FE6A1H 202458318 -
2024 6 H1H Kk 202595 A831H -

Accumulated impairment losses
As at 1 June 2023, 31 May 2024, 1 June 2024
and 31 May 2025

Carrying amount REE
As at 31 May 2025 R2025F5A31H 4

As at 31 May 2024 202445 431 H -

Impairment tests for goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

For the year ended 31 May 2025, goodwill has been allocated
to the CGUs of e-commerce platform (the “e-commerce
CGU") for impairment assessment purpose. In addition to
goodwill, intangible asset that generate cash flows together
with the related goodwill was also allocated to the e-commerce
CGU for impairment testing.

The recoverable amounts of the e-commerce CGU have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using discounted
cash flow method, which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors covering a five-
year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 10% per annum (2024:
nil) calculated by using weighted average cost of capital. The
key assumptions used by management in setting the financial
budgets for the initial five-year period were as follows:
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B E R ER A
BEERNEERHRERABE A EE
GBI B AR A BRI EEFEZ
RNEZHE -

BHE20255A3MHIEFE B2
EEEFRABFYeReELEM((E

BRREEEEN]) UETTRERME

B E - E‘@*HF’EF‘%Q ,\HFEEE%ML
ENBVEENC O REEFRABES
FE@LLT’E/WE/EIJ?t

EfFRABTFeReELSLNAIKRES
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BRI RETER - EEEH

ERNIFHENMBRERERNE
EHRRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. B& (&)

Impairment tests for goodwill (continued)
Forecast sales growth rates — based on past experience
adjusted for sales trends and the strategic decisions made in
respect of the CGU.

Operating profits — based on historical experience of operating
margins, adjusted for the impact of changes to costs and cost
saving initiatives.

Cash conversion — based on the historical ratio of operating
cash flow to operating profit.

Cash flows beyond five-year period have been extrapolated
using 3% (2024: nil) per annum growth rate, which is estimated
by the directors of the Company based on past performance
of the CGU and their expectations of market development and
the rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets.

The recoverable amount is significantly above the carrying
amount of the CGU. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not result
in impairment.

The Group has conducted an analysis of the sensitivity of the
impairment test to changes in the key assumptions used to
determine the recoverable amount for the above CGUS to
which goodwill is allocated. The directors believe that any
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which
the recoverable amount of CGU would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of the CGU.

BmERENHE @)

BAMERER — ERREHEESRD
AENBACRERASELBMNEDY
B BREE IRER -

mERN —ERQEMNBENBER
B WRLEC AN B B MK A B A B
EFHAE-

Rk — EREERSREREE
S5 U0 B 52 b -

BehFEHENRERECDEREFI%
(2024 % : ) B REMHE - L EKT)
HARFEERERCELBMNBE
KRB KRB ISHROFEMEL G
B XA HEBAAM SN FHRHE
=

TW@%ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ%Fiﬁﬁm%
Mg oy EMZERRHE
HQET%@@%$E\ﬁHE

AEECHARNBEECESRHEN L
MR ELEEM A KO E R
RE(CHRERAANBUREETOMN
E=ZRA ERsEABRMTROS
HAERENEERINVEMNSEA] LR
B TegRaRmnEBRLZReESE
BRI O 4B ER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

20. INVENTORIES 20. #&

At cost; TR
Raw materials and consumables R RN OH FE @ 833
Finished goods BIRY G 917
1,800

21. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 21. EIRFIE - RER AN

2025
2025 %
RM’'000

A+
<58

Trade receivables B 5 rWEIE 11,457 14,765

Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEBEE (6,076) (6,181)
5,381 8,584
Other receivables and deposits HtERHRERZS 3,821 4,455
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEIERE (1,952) (1,271)
1,869 3,184
Prepayments iEADE:N 807 717
8,057 12,485
The amounts due from trade debtors are unsecured, do not EWE SEEFERIFATHE  MAS
carry any interest and the credit term granted by the Group EFETHEERNT3I0E120H -

ranges from 30 to 120 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

21. BWRTE RERANSR@E)

21. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for credit losses) presented based on the invoice
date:

LT RRIEZZAM2IIME 5 EKR
(MR EEBRERE) RE DT

1-30 days 1£230H 3,694
31-60 days 31E260H 1,051
61-90 days 61290H 492
91-120 days 91£120H 414
More than 120 days 1208 A £ 2,933

8,584

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 32(b).

AEEESRBHREELENEEBRRK
FEERRAE — FFBEN M EE320)

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING 22. BEINRAER AR RBRERIE
COMPANY AND A SHAREHOLDER
The amount due from ultimate holding company is non-trade JEMSRIZER AR FIBERIEE S MEE
nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. EER RERBRERER -
The amount due from a shareholder is non-trade nature, FEWRRFIERIFESHEE  mER -
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The REREBEREKEE - RPBRFEL
maximum amount outstanding during the financial year is BEEeREESTEA3200057 (2024 F ¢
RM32,000 (2024: RM35,000). 350009 %) °

23. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND 23. EHIRTENR BRERBTER

BANK BALANCES

2025
2025 F

RM'000

a1
< A

Current: BN ER -
Short-term bank deposits FEHRRITIF AR 21,089
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHES 7,142
Total et 28,231
Less: Deposits pledged as security & : EEFIEER ZFEXK (212)
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 28,019
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23. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND 23. EHIRTER REeERBITER
BANK BALANCES (continued) (&)
Short-term bank deposits of the Group have an average REBRHBRTFRNEHRBEN T
maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months. Bank balances are 123 A - RITEHRARBEETH
deposits held at with licensed banks. Fa e
The average interest rates of deposits of the Group are REBTFRHFHFENENF3.65% =
ranging from 3.65% t0 3.8% (2024: 2.30% t0 3.81%) per annum. 3.8% (20244 : 2.30% £ 3.81% ) ° %2 HA
Included in the short-term bank deposits are amounts totaling RITFHRBIEBELN E1,17600% F
approximately RM1,176,000 (2024: RM212,000) that have been (20244 : 212,0002F) E B &£ 58 -
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the NAETAEEHN —RIBITREREE
Group as disclosed in note 34. RONFIFEZLFTHFE) ©

24. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 24. EARIERETEHA

2025 2024
2025 % 2024 F

RM’'000 RM'000

o A
B <\

Trade payables B S EMNFIE 2,876

Accrued charges s &R 4,051 4,698
Other payables H fth fE T 5RIE 2,555 1,485
Contract liabilities AHEE 1,798 1,144

11,280 10,145
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented BB NFBEEEZEAF2INERERD
based on the invoice date: T

2025
2025 F
RM’'000

A=
<A

1-30 days 1£230H 991 1,071

31-60 days 31260H 818 899
61-90 days 61290H 771 734
91-120 days 912120 H 294 112
Over 120 days 1208 LA £ 2 2

2,818
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to 75 BEMNTHEEHRRIIEISH A&
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in B E VB EREIEBR AR A &
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit NHREHEEERRALLE -
timeframe.
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24.

25.

PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES (continved)  24. BRIBERETER (&)

Contract liabilities arise if a particular payment exceeds the BHBEREEMNNBABEREZERKECE
revenue recognised to date. RN EAE -

The Group classifies contract liabilities as current because the rEEBEHNEBEI BRRE  REA
Group expected to settle them in its normal operating cycle. AEEEHEEIFELERABAGEES

HBEE-

Revenue from manufacturing and trading recognised during AFYEHNAENREZE 202545 A
the year ended 31 May 2025 that was included in the contract JNNBULFERRNEERBESIBAL
liabilities at the beginning of the year was amounted to 1,126,000% 5 (2024 4 : 791,000 5 ) °

RM1,126,000 (2024: RM791,000).

LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HEEE

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TERETAEENREHARNEERE
of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the reporting RIER T & I EIRR M B ERIE R o

period.

Present value of
minimum lease payments
BREEEREZRE

Lease liabilities payable: EREERE:

Within one year —FRN 405
In the second to fifth years, inclusive % —FE=FE R F
(BIEEEMT) -
405
Less: Amount due for settlement el - 1248 A A B B FE S
within 12 months (shown FEBERREBERE
under current liabilities) T3IR) (405)
Amount due for settlement after 12 121{& A 14 2| 8 f& (- 3k 08
months (shown under non-current (RIERBEETIIR)
liabilities) -
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to FEARNHEE A BN INETHIEEERF

lease liabilities at 3.44% (2024 3.49%). R 5 3.44% (2024 4F : 3.49%) o
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. ELEBIIE
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a B & EMITREF R RN IE & E Y
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 4 BN ER 75 18 B 5 LA R i 3 RE 7 16 £ [R] —
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to TG HEAAERE  BIEERIBEEREE
the same tax authority. The following amounts, determined TLAEEE - LT EREE IR E B iHRE
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated TE IR ERE BRI

statement of financial position:

Accelerated Unrealised
tax ECL Right-of-use Lease forex
depreciation provision assets liabilities exchange

nEHE  BHER kAR
& BRRE BE  HERR KERHNE
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

;F AL :F Ade VAN AL AL
~ A XA < XA XA

At 1 June 2023 MNBF6ATH (342) 252 (238) 247 (50) (131)
(Charge) credit to profitor loss B8 (%) 5 A 19 ) 136 (150) 2 3%
At 31 May 2024 R2024E5R 318 (323) 251 (102) 97 (18) (95)
(Charge) credit to profitor loss 182 (F15) st A 37 8 (229) 21 73 (16)
At 31 May 2025 2025554318 (286) 279 (331) 318 91 (111)
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 26. EEBLIE (&)

REF)

At beginning of year

Debited/(credited) to profit or loss mne (GtA) 8=
(Note 10) (K13t 10)
At end of year RER

The deferred tax liabilities mainly represent the tax effect of
taxable temporary differences arising from accelerated tax
depredation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets. The amount is offset by deferred tax assets arising from
lease liabilities and ECL.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. At 31 May 2025,
the Group did not recognise deferred income tax asset in
respect of tax losses amounting to approximately RM4,846,000
(2024: RM3,325,000) that can be carried forward to offset
against future taxable profits. Losses may be carried forward
indefinitely. No unrecognised deductible temporary differences
after net off taxable temporary differences for both years.

2025
2025 £

RM'000

A%
<A

95

16 (36)

EXEFARETREME BB AR
AR EREEENERRBITENHEE
ERAVEFUEZHE - ZeHBHEER
EREREEBEREANREERBEE
HH e

fidf BT 38 38 2R 20 & BR A0 M) 5 3R 4 R AR
WES - RIBEE AR ERERRELER
BAE - N2025F5A31H - KEEW
BB AT T A B DA 85 OR SR AR B A
2 AT B 5 494,846,000 % & (2024 4F :
33250005 F) RBELEMBEHEE -
BRAERRAEE MEFENEHE
AR E R M Z R EORER A R E
B 258 o
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27. PROMISSORY NOTES 27. ZRREE

2025
2025 F

RM'000

A4
<A

The carrying amount of the EBRAEAEBZEREE

promissory note payables are ARUTHEERE:

repayable:

— Amount due for settlement — MBEEBETATR
within 12 months shown 1218 A A EIER
under current HEE R IR

— Amount due for settlement — ERBBEBRTATR
after 12 months shown under 1216 H & 21| 58
non-current liabilities HEHHFIE

Movements in promissory note FERAREESELT :
payable are as following:

Balance at beginning of the year FAEEH

Settlement of the acquisition BRBITERREREE
cost of a subsidiary by the —EB ARz

issue of promissory note U B P AR

Repayment of promissory note EEANRE
Interest payable FETAIE
Exchange difference MEH ZERE
Balance at end of the year FRAERR

On 17 January 2023, a promissory note was issued with a
principal amount of HK$5,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RM3,244,000), bearing a fixed interest rate of 3% per annum
and maturing two years from the date of issuance. During
the year partial repayment of HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RM813,000) was made. On 30 January 2025,
new promissory notes with principal amount of HK$4,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RM2,167,000) were issued to
replace the previous outstanding promissory note. The new
notes bear a fixed interest rate of 3% per annum and mature
two years from the date of issuance.

On 30 December 2024, promissory notes were issued with an
aggregated principal amount of HK$5,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RM3,166,000) for the settlement of acquisition of
subsidiaries also bearing a fixed interest rate of 3% per annum
and maturing two years from the date of issuance.
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3,446

3,446

3,276

99
71

3,446

202341 817 B - A& %8 45,500,000
BT (S R 493,244,000% 5 ) Y% 3,
ZRBEET BREEFAEI%T
B WREITHHRBITMEREE-
RERT E 5 & 1,500,000 7T (HHE
7 #1813,000% &) ° 120254 1 A 30
H - 7K 4 %8 /44,000,000 7T (88 R4
2,167,000 F) M AR BHRE 81T
LR ERTHARESER L ZE - TEZE
BETEFMEI%E - W ETHH
RERT R EE 12 I HR o

R2024F12R830H ' A& R A
5,500,000 7T (FHE 74 3,166,000 2 &
AR ZBEE T UEERENEAR
A BRZEAR BB INVZEFEF R E3%
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

28. A&

Number of

Par value
BREE

shares Share capital

(&N

BRAEE
000 HK$'000
TH B TR il

RM'000

Authorised: EE
At 1 June 2022, R202F6A18 »

31 May 2023, 2023F5A31H »

1 June 2023 and 2023F6A1B R

31 May 2024 2024F5HA31H 1,250,000 0.08 100,000
Share consolidation B tn & B (© (1,125,000) - -
At 31 May 2025 202595 A31H 125,000 0.80 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 June 2023 R2023F 6 A1H 123,876 0.08 9,910 5,438
Issue of subscription shares by 32 i 37 il &5 3 8 %

newly allotted ordinary shares %172 B % (D (@) 12,388 0.08 991 590
At 31 May 2024 and R2024F5A31 B K&

1June 2024 20246818 136,264 0.08 10,901 6,028
Issue of subscription shares by 3% 18 #1Fic 2 & 3B %

newly allotted ordinary shares % 7TREMH ) 27,253 0.08 2,180 1,237
Share consolidation B tn & B (© (147,165) - - -
At 31 May 2025 7202545 A 318 16,352 0.80 13,081 7,265
Notes: Hta
(@ On 7 June 2023 (after trading hours), the Company entered (@ #2023 E 6 A7H (X SEE) -

into the subscription agreement with the subscriber. The KRB ERBAGTIREmZ -

Company allotted and issued subscription shares comprising
12,387,600 ordinary shares of HK$0.082 each on 16 June
2023. The gross proceeds were HK$1,015,000 (equivalent to
approximately RM605,000), of which a sum of HK$991,000
(equivalent to approximately RM590,000) was credited to
share capital and the balance of HK$24,000 (equivalent to
approximately RM15,000) was credited to share premium

account.

R2023F 6 A16 B » KR A% &
178 512,387,600 f% & f% 0.082
BILZ EBRRBRMD - TSR
TH 48 58 /51,015,000 7T (2R 4
605,000% &) » H &4 991,000
7t (A& R #590,0005 &) 2 5t A
%$ '§%%§24000?§7‘1($5 R4
15,0009 F) EFF ARMDHEER ©
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  On 27 June 2024 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with the subscriber, pursuant
to which the Company will allot and issue an aggregate
of 27,252,720 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.08 per share. The net proceeds from the
subscription after deducting related professional fees and
related expenses approximately HK$2,100,000 (equivalent
to approximately RM1,192,000). The subscription was
completed on 17 July 2024.

() On 2 August 2024, an ordinary resolution was passed on
share consolidation (“Share Consolidation”). According
to the resolution, every 10 issued and unissued existing
shares of par value HK$0.08 each in the share capital of
the Company would be consolidated into 1 consolidated
share of par value HK$0.8 each (“Consolidated Share”)
and authorised shares from 1,125,000 to 125,000. The Share
Consolidation became effective on 6 August 2024.

All ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu with
the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 27 June 2017, the Company has
conditionally adopted a share option scheme.

The share option scheme will be valid and effective for a period
of ten years from the date of the adoption of the scheme by
equity settlement. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the share option
scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue upon the date of the shares of the Company
listed on the GEM. The number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the share option scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company at any time shall not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

No option was granted as at the date of this report.
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8. BA (&)

Hiat - (%)

() 20246 A278 (X BERE) -
RNAREREATIREWZ &
I AR A IR REEER0.08E
TUBC B K B 1T A $£27,252,720 R 5B
[ fn - REEIE Z 1153858 (K&
HBRAEEEER BRI R D
/42,100,000 7T (AHE 747 1,192,000
%) c RESBEMN2024F7 A178
TEAK

© 20245 8A28 BEBEKMHA G
(BB EH)MERRARZRER
B RBZRFR AR AIRAF
F+REREESE THE T
DARBETHEERDEAHA—RE
BEECSE THE FD (& O
?1) - A E B 9 #% B 1,125,000 A%
24 4 125,000 % » B 10 A& £F B8 2024
FEIAGCHMAER -

B R BT S AR B
ERBES T EEE R LA -

BEARNQNTRENR2017F6 A27 HiEE
REMMRZZR  NARCAIGHERA—
TEHEERR IR E -

BROES B B IR MG B E B T4
HEAAR R ER WA ERHEE 1R
RO T 8] N AR 1 B o] H A s A
At BRI BE IR O BB AR AR TS S BV R A0 BK
B ERAXTFBBARRRMNKGEM
EHE A BETRDAEENI10% - RIE
AR T B R AR X B fa] E A B AR AT
SR RHEFEARTENRERRITER
P ITERR TRITZROEAE - R
TR NEEETEDEITRDE
30%

KA E B - BEEE ) B8 -
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29. f##&

29. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

At beginning of year F7)
Issue of subscription shares
by newly allotted ordinary

shares (Note 28)

BB R BT
RS (it 28)

(a)

At end of year FXR

Other reserve

The other reserve at 31 May 2024 and 2025 represented
the aggregate amount of the fully paid registered or paid-
in capital of Target Precast Industries Sdn Bhd, Target
Sales & Marketing Sdn Bhd, Target Crane & Logistic Sdn
Bhd, Gallant Empire Limited, SK Target Holdings Sdn Bhd
and Loyal Earn Limited.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from that of the Group’s
presentation currency.

IR A7 518

15

28,074

28,074

(b) HpbfEf

(c)

BlEmasEEAR AT /2025 F 3R

2024 F K 2025F 5 A31 HMH
b, 5% #& 5 Target Precast Industries
Sdn Bhd - Target Sales & Marketing
Sdn Bhd - Target Crane & Logistic
Sdn Bhd - Gallant Empire Limited -
SK Target Holdings Sdn Bhd X Loyal
Earn Limited 89 & 2 sk i sk B U &
INUBEE o

B 5 7 18
EXREANCEREEEY
TRNAEE 25 EEHNEINE
B ERRELNEN Z8 -
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. WIBKIB AR
On 30 December 2024, the Group acquired a 100% interest MR2024F12 A30H - AEB W & 8
in Vansion Intelligent Living Services (HK) Limited, a company BEEERS (BE) BR 2 A/ 100%
principally engaged in investment holding. The acquisition was M ZAREERBIRELER - B
made with the objective of expanding the Group’s non-core FEEAERASEHIERZLES - HE
business. It has been accounted for as acquisition of business FEAKBEARERBKBER -

using the acquisition method.

A valuation report received upon completion of acquisition REEZR2024F 12 A0 ek W B &
accounting on 30 December 2024 in the current year indicated FrEKEMEEREER  BIESE4
that the fair value of the net assets acquired of Vansion ERE (BB BRARREE RN E
Intelligent Living Services (HK) Limited at the date of acquisition WHEEEFE A TERS 16200097 °

was RM3,162,000.
Consideration transferred FrEZEARE

RM'000

A=
~< =

Promissory notes AL RE 3,166
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at REBEHZERBEERDE
the date of acquisition REfE
RM’'000
AN
< A
Intangible asset mEE 3,180
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H A FEW IR 4
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELFEY 3
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A FER FIE (62)
3,162
Goodwill arising on acquisition WESESEELENESE
RM’'000
AN+
< A
Consideration transferred Frag KB 3,166
Less: recognised amounts of net assets acquired & : EWEEEFEZCHER S (3,162)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 19) WS =B EE 88 (M 19) 4
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

31.

Goodwill arising on acquisition (continued)
Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Vansion Intelligent Living
Services (HK) Limited. The acquisition included the assembled
workforce of Shenzhen Vansion Full Intelligent Living Services
Limited, wholly owned by Wanshun Smart Life Services
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. which is wholly-owned subsidiary of
Vansion Intelligent Living Services (HK) Limited. And some
potential contracts which are still under negotiation with
prospective new customers as at the date of acquisition. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Had the acquisition of Vansion Intelligent Living Services (HK)
Limited been completed on 30 December 2024, included in
the loss for the year is approximately R\M70,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by Shenzhen Vansion Full
Intelligent Living Services Limited. The Group's revenue for
the year includes approximately RM327,000 contributed from
Shenzhen Vansion Full Intelligent Living Services Limited.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity balance.
Equity balance consists of equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital and accumulated l0ss.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on an on-going annual basis. As part of this review, the
management of the Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends as well as the issue of new debt and repayment of
debt.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
is that it must have a public float of at least 25% of the shares
in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange.

30.

31.

BlEmEEB AR AT /2025 F 3K

W B8 Bt BB 2 B ()
BIREREENWEE (&)
BEELEREEIREBEERY (B
) BRAR - 2RI S TR E R
BIEEEEEERBERAR (RBIE
BREERB (RI)ERAAZER
B MBIEEBAEERE (RY)ARA
RIRABIRE B EERE (B8 ARA
AR ANBLE) M8 THME - kR
W B D ERBE N R RENE S E
AR o R S 23 T A 7 5 4
FOABE 2 WER R - BRI AR R B B
TR -

WEERHAKERENTE

a

WKRBBIEEELFRE (FB) AR
NAEID 202412 A30H Ak B
NEBBEERE R BIERE 2 £ER
BER DR FTES ZINETE 470,000
SH - AEENFARSBIERBE R
INEERBEELEERFERARNL
327,000 % °

EXRERERE
AEEEBEEAURRAEEEEE
RS WEBELEBRRES
BAMFAMEFREABR - FA -
FEMERRBRETE -

AREENEARE B RRREAK - Ik
RARBEREANRRER AN EAREE
BEBRAKRREEE -

FAEEERE BERFEREARRERE -
EREAN - AREEEEELZE
BARARZRERNEBERAR - REAX
SEEEEMNREZ  AREKBBRNY
BEARBITHERREREH FEE
EREARE -

REEME—SMNBRIMEE R BERKBE YN
BREBZEL25%B MO RRFTHRE - A
MR R NBE X PTH)_E T o
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

148

Categories of financial instruments

32. €M A

(a)

Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost B AR
Financial liabilities SEaE
Amortised cost RN

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments and details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to the Group’s bank balances and fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate lease liabilities,
short-term bank deposits and promissory note.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk as
a result of changes in market interest rates and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates should
the need arise.

Lease liabilities which are fixed rate instruments are
insensitive to any change in interest rates. A change in
interest rate at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances as
the management of the Company considers that the
interest rate fluctuation on bank are minimal and the
impact from the exposure to interest rate risk sensitivity
is considered insignificant.
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2025
2025 F

RM’'000

P
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32. eI A #®)
(b) HBEABREEEEREE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continuead)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk

The Group has certain bank balances denominated in
HKD other that the functional currency of respective
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.

If the respective currencies in which the Group’s
promissory notes, cash and bank balances are
denominated had strengthened/weakened 5% against
Malaysian Ringgit at 31 May 2025, the post-tax profit of
the Group for the year would have decreased/increased

by:

HKD

BT

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's exposure to credit risk is primarily due to
the collectability risk of the trade receivables. The length
of the credit period granted by the Group will depend
on the customers’ scale of operation, reputation and
credibility. The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial condition of trade debtors and tightly
monitors the overdue debts. The Group will take the
necessary follow up action in case of long outstanding
debts or when the above credit evaluation results draw
the attention of management.

BlEmasEEAR AT /2025 F 3R

(%)

TSR (E)

BEmEpE
HREEBEERBIREERIN A&
BE TRITHESRAETEE 1€
1 {56 AN 5% [ T e 11 SRR o

REEEB T V) IR SMNEE R B
BEEZAR -

MASEEARERE Re RBRT
EHNZFTEEER202545A
NBRERATSHAE RE
5% + R N & B R F e Fi 18 s K
RN

The Group
rEH
2025
2025 £
RM’'000

P —
<8

2024
20244
RM'000

A=
~< A

(219)

FERERBERT
AEEPERNEERREIERR
VB 5 e MR IE /Y A] Y (B LB AT
H-AKBERETEEHNHR
BRFEFPHEERE BER
EEME AEEREZEHA
BB AR ETTH B S BRI
AEEBRXLMEEFEER
FEEEERT  AEEBERR
VERNRETE -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

150

and policies (continuead)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which might cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk as
at 31 May 2025 on trade receivables from the Group's
five major customers amounting to approximately
RM5,073,000 (2024: RM9,179,000) and accounted for
44% (2024: 62%) of the Group's total trade receivables.
The major customers of the Group are reputable
organisations. The directors closely monitor the
subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good credit
ratings and the Group has limited exposure to any single
financial institution.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverability of each trade debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group
applies simplified approach on trade receivables to
provide for the ECL prescribed by IFRS 9. The Group
measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLSs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to settlement pattern taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue cost
or effort.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. €M I A %)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIKEEREEEERKE
and policies (continuead) (#)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EER KRB ETS (&)
(Continued)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment REBBAEEER R R
comprises the following categories: BIELATEER
Internal credit Other financial
rating Description Trade receivables assets
AEBEETR B B 5 EWHRE HittemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have Lifetime ECL—not  12-month (“12m") ECL
any past-due amounts credit-impaired
{EE R XHHFANENERRE - BXEE(AETE 2HEMEESE  126@A(M2@8A)

—RBEEERE BHEEER

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle after — Lifetime ECL—not ~ 12m ECL
due date credit-impaired
ERAE EREARETREMBREN BERAFRBNAREE 2HEHEERE 12EABHEE

—RBEEERE BR

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial  Lifetime ECL—not  Lifetime ECL — not
recognition through information developed internally or credit-impaired credit-impaired
external resources

e UARFNBERESHERBTENRERUREERR 2U0BHEERE 2HRHEEEE
BEEm —RBEFERE —REEEERE

LOSS There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

credit-impaired credit-impaired

BB BRERREECREEERE 2HRBAEERE 2UBEHEERE

—CBEAEERNE —ERLEEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

ik ERETEBABRARENMEREAREE AEARIBEM BEREEME

FEERK A 8
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32.

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

External Internal
Note  credit rating  credit rating

Wi SBEEFR RBEEIR

Financial assets at amortised cost

REEKAENSREE
Amount due from ultimate
holding company 22 N/A (Note 1)
R BRI R R U TER (F5E1)
Amount due from a shareholder 22 N/A (Note 1)
FERRRIE TER (F3E1)
Short-term bank deposits 23 A1, ADA N/A
RESTER TER
Cash at bank 23 A3, AA3, AAA N/A
BIRE TER
Other receivables and deposits 21 N/A (Note 1)
HiERHE ke TER (F5E1)
Trade receivables — goods and
services 21 N/A Low risk
B 5 R HE — BN RRS TR igeiy
Watch list
BRBE
Doubtful
R
Loss
BB

1 52 WS-SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

2RI A%
(b) ¥BEEABEEEERBEEK
(%)

FERREKBERE)

TRFALAEEERXIAHEER
ERIENEREENEERR
[ qmig

2025 2024

Gross Gross

12-month or  carrying carrying
lifetime ECL  amount amount
12A528 20255 20245
BHEEFE #BHE AFEE
RM'000 RM'000

2% For

12m ECL 45 40
REABREESE

12m ECL 32 35
REARMEESE

12mECL BRERTLN 21,089
REABREESE

12m ECL 4,054 7,142
REARMEEHE

12m ECL 3,821 4,455
REABREESE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired 6,403 7,217

2HBRBEESE

— RBEEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired 1,099 1,222

2HRAEERRE

—REEEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired 943 1,862

2HESEEEE

—RBEEERE

Lifetime ECL —

credit-impaired 3,012 4,464
2HREHEERR
—BEEEERE
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. E@MI A %)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) HMERABREEEEREE

and policies (continuea) (%)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EER KRB ETS (&)

(Continued)

Note: et

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, 1. ?M%‘B%%f@@%f%% R
the Group uses past due information to assess ;‘%E@Uﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬂ#%@@ﬁﬁ
whether credit risk has increased significantly since HREEERRESCAREE
initial recognition. e

Past due Not past
under due under

lifetime ECL 12m ECL Total
2 HFE 1218 B FE 8

FEERET FEERET
el R mEt
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000

P e A
=] == <a

Amount due from ultimate & Ut & 4235 f% A 7

holding company RIE
Amount due from a JFE UL AR 51 5R0R
shareholder
Other receivables H W SR IE
Deposits e

Past due Not past
under due under
lifetime ECL 12m ECL
FHITE A
EEEE

Amount due from ultimate & U & #2342 B A 7]

holding company FRIE - 40 40
Amount due from a FE YR 3R FRIR

shareholder - 35 35
Other receivables H b fE Uk 3R 1A - 174 174
Deposits e - 3,010 3,010
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. €M I A%
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIKEREEEERKE
and policies (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FER KRB ETS E)
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

TRIUTIR BB R R 5
W RO TR & B RS B 1B
T -

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)

2 HTEH
EEBE
(B#&E
EERE)
RM'000

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
2HEH
EEESE
(RBE
EERE)
RM'000

A A=
X R Ed=

154

At 1June 2023 M2023F 6 A1H 3,089 2,573 5,662
— Impairment losses recognised — EHERBEEE - 476 476
— Impairment losses reversed —BEEREEE (38) - (38)
— Exchange differences —ERERE - 81 81
At 31 May 2024 and 1 June 2024 R2024F5R31H &

20246 A1H 3,051 3,130 6,181
— Impairment losses recognised — BHERREEE 121 424 545
— Impairment losses reversed — B R RREERE - (219) (219)
— Exchange differences —ERERE (108) (323) (431)
At 31 May 2025 M 202545 A31H 3,064 3,012 6,076
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continuea)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement in 12 months
ECL that has been recognised for other receivables and

deposits under the general approach.

32. eI A&
(b) ¥ HEBEEBEFEREX
(%)

FERREKBERE)

TRIRRE —RITABE &
Wk IE B 7 SRR E9 12 18 A TR R
EEEENEE -

RM’000

A==

< A

At 1 June 2023 M2023F 6 A1H 839
Impairment losses recognised BRERREEE 432
At 31 May 2024 and 1 June 2024 F2024F5 831 B &2024F 6 A1H 1,271
Impairment losses recognised BERRREEE 764
Exchange differences [EHZRE (83)
At 31 May 2025 202545 A31H 1,952

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The ECL
rate are estimated based on its credit rating, past and
current default record and current past due exposure of

the customer.

The impairment loss for trade receivables are assessed
in provision matrix and determined by reference to
independent professional valuer’'s assessment in
accordance with IFRS 9 by adopting its independently
selected parameters which take into consideration
of historical default records and forward-looking
information. At 31 May 2025, the gross trade receivables
of approximately RM3,955,000 (2024: RM6,326,000)
was past due and impairment loss of approximately
RM6,076,000 (2024: RM6,181,000) was recognised as at

31 May 2025.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.

ERAKBEEERRERE %D
AEBEHETFEABAMEEF
Ko FAHEEBBRENRERE
EEH - BERERZENHCE
AREFERBYMO G

BoRWKGIENREBEDLS
=¥ B E AR R BB B 7%
RS AR EE SR A TG LA B 55 KB e
ETHEMRET  EHRRMEE
VEREM2E EREREFELE
450 8% K RTIE B K o A2025F
5A31H » 43,955000% & (2024
F 1 6,326,0005F) B & 5 E WK
TE4ERE 2 B H o )R 20254 5 A 31
B #76,076,000% & (2024 4 :
6,181,000% % ) ZBEREEHER

8 & FH RN B 7% A E B E i
RS - B EE £ E R
F AT = (ARE A B05 8 o AR
ERRF & (WMAESEKKIER)
SHEBHBAMF UARFELE
ERE)) AAREEMEESE
WOROR -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

156

and policies (continuead)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group makes periodic individual impairment
assessment under ECL model for refundable deposits
based on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also guantitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The directors of
the Group believe that there are no significant increase
in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition.
At 31 May 2025, the Group provided impairment loss of
approximately RM1,952,000 (2024: RM1,271,000) based
on 12-month ECL.

No ECL has been provided for amounts due from
ultimate holding company and amount due from a
shareholder. The Company limits its exposure to credit
risk for amounts due from ultimate holding company and
amount due from a shareholder and there was no recent
history of default. Management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. Management
will continues to monitor the position and will take
appropriate action if there are changes.

In these regards, other than the credit risks mentioned
above, the management believes the Group does not
have any other significant credit risk and will monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities which has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for the
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continuead)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows,
to the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted

average
effective On demand
interest or less than
rate 12 months
mE¥H  BEXY
EBFZE 12@AU%T
RM'000

4%

As at 31 May 2025 #2025%5A 318

Payables and accrued charges  JERT AR E:HE

Lease liabilities HESE

Promissory notes EES

As at 31 May 2024 R2024%55A 318

Payables and accrued charges BT UA R EAHE - 9,001
Lease liabilities HEER 3.49% 409
Promissory notes EE S 3% 3473

32. eI A #®)

(b)

MEERBREEEERBEE
()

REBESEE(E)
RPRENERASRERE -
FERFBHFE  ARERS
B E PROFE R H

Total
undiscounted
cash flows
RERRE

REAH

Total
carrying
amount

Over
2 years

28N E
RM'000

Fo%

REEE
RM'000

T4%

- 9,001 9,001
- 409 405
- 3473 3446

The Company provides financial guarantees to banks
for banking facilities of its subsidiary company. The
Company monitors on an ongoing basis, the results
of the subsidiary company and repayments made by
the subsidiary company. The maximum exposure to
credit risk are equivalent to the amounts of the banking
facilities utilised by the said subsidiary company as of the
reporting date. As of the reporting date, there was no
indicator that the subsidiary company would default on
repayment.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement

158

)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured

at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technigue as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee.

Fair value of the financial assets and
liabilities carried other than fair value
The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values. Fair
values of the financial assets and financial liabilities
have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs
being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk
of counterparties.
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. RERERERMT

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from () METBELANEBHKE
financing activities
The table below details the reconciliation of opening TREFRAGERERERE K
and closing amounts in the consolidated statement of BOBERBRETDNRERES
financial position for each liability for which cash flows HEEBERGRE YR REZ BB
have been or would be, classified as financing activities NEAR S RBERFE -

in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

Promissory Interest Lease
notes DEVED]( liabilities
RARE EAHE HERE

RM'000 RM'000

A
~ A

A
Ea=

At 1June 2023 R2023F6A1H 3,276 - 1,030 4,306
Non-cash changes: FRSEE
Exchange difference B ERE A - - 77
Interest expenses FlSHY 99 10 24 133

3,446 10 1,054 4510
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREHERH :
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERHE2ERE D - - (625) (625)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BN zFEEHS - - (24) (24)
Finance costs paid BENEBEKAR - (10) - (10)
At 31 May 2024 and 1 June 2024 R2024F5A318 %

2024F6A1H 3,446 - 405 3,851
Non-cash changes: #ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Settlement of acquisition cost of BRBITRLIEEEE
a subsidiary by the issue of promissory —fRBARZ
notes Y AR 3,166 - - 3,166

New leases entered EIHE - - 1,753 1,753
Exchange difference B ERE (351) - - (351)
Interest expenses FEFRE 110 9 24 143

6,371 9 2,182 8,562
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREHELH :
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERfEzERE D - - (676) (676)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEREEzFIEEHS - - (24) (24)
Repayment of promissory note BEALER (813) - - (813)
Finance costs paid BENEEKAK - ) - %)
At 31 May 2025 R 2025F5H31H 5,558 - 1,482 7,040
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 May 2025, the Group entered
into the following major non-cash transactions:

(i) Acquisition of a subsidiary for a total consideration
of HK$5,500,000 (equivalent to RM3,166,000),
which was fully settled through the issuance of
promissory notes.

(i) Settlement of a previously issued promissory
note with a new one amounting to HK$4,000,000
(equivalent to RM2,167,000).

(i) Additions to right-of-use assets during the year
were financed through the recognition of lease
liabilities amounting to RM1,753,000.

34. BANKING FACILITIES
At 31 May 2025, a subsidiary company of the Group has
banking facilities amounting to approximately RM5,750,000
(2024: RM5,750,000).

These facilities are secured by:
(i)  leasehold land under right-of-use assets and building
with a carrying amount of approximately RM196,000

(2024: RM207,000);

(i fixed deposits amounting to approximately RM1,176,000
(2024: RM212,000); and

(i) corporate guarantee by the Company amounting to
RM7,050,000 (2024: RM5,750,000).

At 31 May 2025, the utilisation of banking facilities amounted to

nil (2024: RM534,000) for the performance guarantee disclosed
in note 36.
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RITEE

R2025F5A31H » REBE/—REK
BRRIMIRITRLE 4 45,750,0004 F
(2024¢ 5,750,000 %) °
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 35. RfIBARMER
During the year, the Company has direct and indirect ER - ADNTARTHMBER TGS BE
shareholders/equity interests in the following subsidiary RREERE IR AR
companies:
Equity attributable to the Group
AEEESERE
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid-up
Name of Company operation share capital ! Principal activities
MR/ ERTR
TR BEME #ZKRA 5AH31H ) TEEH
Target Precast Industries Malaysia RM500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of precast
Sdn. Bhd. SRAR 500,000 % concrete junction boxes
WERBERYRRIRER
Target Sales & Marketing Malaysia RM70,002 100% 100%  Trading of precast concrete junction
Sdn. Bhd. SRAE 700022 % boxes and accessories and pipes
EERRRRIRBAREHRESR
Target Crane & Logistic Malaysia RM100 100% 100%  Provision of mobile crane rental and
Sdn. Bhd. BRAED 1002% ancillary services
RUEBDALEREERRLERS
Gallant Empire Limited* British Virgins Us$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Island 1,000%7T RERK
EBRLEE
SK Target Holdings Malaysia RM100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Sdn. Bhd. SRAED 100%% REER
Loyal Eam Limited Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100%  Provision of administrative and
BE 18T management services (FY2024:

Provision of sourcing of material

suppliers services)
RETHRERRE (202485 :

REMEREREDRYE)

Target Foundry Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM100 100% 100%  Inactive
ERAES 100% % LS
SK Solutions Limited Hong Kong HKD100 100% 100%  Sales of health supplement products
BA 10087 HERRED
Vansion Intelligent Living Services Hong Kong HKD10,000 100% - Investment holding
(HK) Limited* 3 10,0007 7 REER
BIREBEERE (FH)
BRAE*
Wanshun Smart Life Services ~ the People's Republicof -~ Renminbi (‘RMB") 100% - Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. China (the “PRC") 1,000,000 REER
BIRBZ4AERE (R EIN ARE(ARE])
BRAR (@) 1,000,000 7
Shenzhen Vansion Full Intelligent  PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - E-commerce platform
Living Services Limited H AR 10,000,007 ETEHKTAE
FYBIERBEEE RS
BRAR
* Directly held by the Company * ARG EERE
None of the subsidiary companies had issued any debt 18T 4 B BB N B N SRS B R B TR ] (& 7%
securities at the end of the reporting period. o
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36. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has provided
a performance guarantee in respect of a project signed with
Telekom Malaysia Berhad, a customer, amounting to nil (2024:
RM534,000) for securing a project. This guarantee will be
discharged upon the completion of the project.

37. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(@) Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and in note
22.

(b)  The remuneration paid or payable to the key management
personnel, being the directors of the Company, during
the year is included in note 6. The remuneration of key
management personnel is determined with reference to
the performance of the individuals and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. A AM BB R

ARB R E HRE I A KR BB

Company at the end of the reporting period includes: BIE
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 £
RM’'000 RM’'000
<E FoFH
Non-Current Asset kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KB AR RIRE -
Current Assets REBEE
Receivables, deposits and FEWGRIE ~ e RIER K
prepayment 1,054
Amounts due from subsidiary FE U B B A R FUIAE
companies (Note a) (KHiiza) 1,753
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHER 93
Total Current Assets REBEEHLE 2,900
Current Liabilities REAE
Payable and accrued charges ENRIEBERESER 682
Amounts due to subsidiary FEAHIT B A R 5108
companies (Note a) (Kraxa) 2,832
Total Current Liabilities HREBEELAE 3,514
Net Current Liabilities BERBEE (614)
Non-Current Liability kRBEE
Promissory notes L -
Total Non-Current Liability kRBEELEE -
Net Liabilities FEE 614)
Capital and Reserves EARRFE
Share capital A& A 7,265 6,028
Share premium 17 = B 28,074 28,074
Accumulated losses (note b) RETEE (MaED) (35,828) (34,716)
Capital Deficiencies =N (489) (614)

EIEHREBERAT /20255 K 163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e %W RN

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. AR BB BEARRE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
The movements of the Company’s equity are as follows: KRABMEREBWT ¢

Share  Accumulated
Share capital premium losses
7R W17 6 (B ZREER
(note 28) (note 29(a))
(Ktat28)  (BMfaF29(a)
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A+ A A+ AL
Ea=

< A ~< A < A

At 1 June 2023 M2023F6 A1H 5,438 28,059 (33,432) 65
Loss for the year FRER - - (1,284) (1,284)
Issue of subscription shares by & @ Br 3 L @A 31T

newly allotted ordinary shares  RE D 590 15 - 605
At 31 May 2024 and M2024 %5 A31 B R

1June 2024 20246 A1 H 6,028 28,074 (34,716) (614)
Loss for the year FHEE - - (1,112) 1,112)
Issue of subscription shares by & @ B 3 L @A 31T

newly allotted ordinary shares  RERHD 1,237 - - 1,237

At 31 May 2025 7202545 A31H 7,265 28,074 (35,828) (489)

Notes: Hta

(@  The amounts due from/(to) subsidiary companies are @ U (EM) WERQRIRIEAEKR
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BB RBIRERER -

(b)  The loss for the year ended 31 May 2025 comprises the () HZE2025F5A3MBILLFEZERE
allowance for credit losses recognised against amounts due BERERKMNE AR RERRNE
from subsidiary companies of approximately RM481,000 BEEEEEY481,0005% (2024 4 ¢
(2024: reversal of allowance for credit losses RM10,000). EEBEEERR10,0005%) °

The financial position of the Company was approved and A BB AR R E R 2025 8 A 29

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 August BlRESHAEWEETE  AHTT

2025 and are signed on behalf by: EEREFEEF:

Loh Swee Keong Yau Ka Hei

B R1E
Director Independent Non-Executive Director
EE2 BN TESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

39.

40.

41.

COMMITMENT
Capital commitment contracted for at the end of the reporting
year but not yet incurred is as follow:

Property, plant and equipment

39.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group entered into several short-term leases for
equipment. As at 31 May 2025, the outstanding lease
commitments relating to these equipment is nil (2024:
RM6,000).

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MAY 2025

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 May 2025 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements?

Classification and Measurement of
Financial Instruments?

IFRS 18
Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Contracts Referencing
Nature-dependent Electricity?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 21
and IFRS 1

Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards —
Volume 112

40.

41.

BlEmasEEAR AT /2025 F 3R

iR
PR S R B AT SLIB i R 2E AR Y B AR
EmT

2025
2025 &
RM’000

P =
<8

542

REHERH
EEBEERAEBEA
AREBRBBI UL TEHHEE - R
2025F5A31H HZERBEEHEN
REBHEFRERT (20244 : 6,0002

&) e

EEMEREBE202555 A 31
HiEFEEAREMZIER - #HB
HEARREZTRSE

BEZEMBHRRTERY  BREF
EHEEZSCHEMZRER AR —RH
AR BARNEE2025F5A31HIEF
BAEBRRZERBRERARD - 2%
BREFE NI EAKEMERE -

BB IRE LR HBBRONZIE
1858 b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 41. S EMHERE E2025%F5 A 31

166

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MAY 2025 (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027

4 Effect date to be determined by the IASB

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements, except for IFRS 18 as
disclosed below.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
(“IFRS 18"), which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements (“IAS 1”). This new IFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in IAS 1, introduces new requirements to present
specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement
of profit or loss; provide disclosures on management-defined
performance measures in the notes to the financial statements;
and improve aggregation and disaggregation of information to
be disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some 1AS
1 paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and IFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Minor amendments to IAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows and IAS 33 Earnings per Share are
also made.

IFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027,
with early application permitted. The application of IFRS 18
is expected to affect the presentation of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the future
consolidated financial statements. The Group is in the process
of assessing the detailed impact of IFRS 18 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

WS-SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

Bl FEEARERZIER - #HE
HARBREZITRSE @)

! R2025F1 A1 B2 BRI FE
HARE A 3

2 M2026F1 A1 RAX BB FE
HAfR A 2k

3 R2027F1 A1 B2 BRI FE
BARS A K

° RERRetEABEEeEE A
HAHE

AEEEENMEZFERNEXRERY
FMEMELNTE 25/ BTX
BB EREERFE 18R WEEI -
AEBR R RALFIER] TR B4R
BV BmREREATE -

[ PR 355 3 5 22 B 56 18 3R i 5%
BRNV2ZIIRKE

BIER 1 75 i & 22 RIS 18 SR T B HR R 40 2
Fl R 7% 5% ([EIPR B I SR E 2 RISE 1855 1)
HINMBHERN 2T R WERTE - I
RER S EREVRY BEHRXHZ7
((EREEERE1R]) -t BEE
M mEER S AR ETERRES
HHF 1R RZRENRE - 5| AR
HHRE  BRNBEERTEIETE
B R FFRER/NGIRE - RE RS IR
EREEEERENEERIRARSE
R BHRETHRENERAH R -
AN - B g ERIE 1R D BOE
EBREZERGHEERSTHE
Batlhat ZE) REHE RBRPBHREE
AIE7Re@MTA  KE BEERSFHE
AIE7RELREX MBS ERIE
335 R & F IME L ABIE RT »

B % B 75 s o ME R 55 18 55 B L R R Y
ERTARKR2027F1 A1 B 2 &%
MEEHRELER  YAFIREER - &
RERMEREENF1BRBEHASEF
BRABRERNEINALKREKERE /5
WARAIBE - NEE LR G BEERET
HEENE1RE A KBRS M BRE
EFHEZ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBRRME

42. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING 42, HEWPRESE

PERIOD

On 18 June 2025 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
(the "MOU") with Wanshun Technology Industrial (Shenzhen)
Group Co., Limited (BIERIEEZECORY)EEFR A Al)
(“Wanshun Technology”), a company incorporated in PRC,
based in Shenzhen, Guangdong province. One of the Wanshun
Technology’s subsidiaries is principally engaged in online ride
hailing service and other related services in 195 cities with
approximately 2.3 million active users and approximately
100,000 active drivers. The Company and Wanshun Technology
wishes to utilise each other’s resources and explore potential
strategic cooperation in the online ride hailing service and
other related services (the “Possible Cooperation”) in order
to capture exploding market demand in PRC and Malaysia.
Pursuant to the MOU, both parties agreed to conduct further
discussions and explore opportunities on the Possible
Cooperation in PRC and Malaysia.

On 1 August 2025 (after trading hours), Wanshun Technology
Industrial Group Limited, a company incorporate in Hong Kong
with limited liability (the “Vendor”), Shenzhen Wanshun eCar
Cloud Tech & Information Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in
the PRC with limited liability (the “Target Company”), Gallant
Empire Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and a directly wholly-owned by the Company (the
“Purchaser”) entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
pursuant to which the Purchaser has agreed to purchase and
the Vendor has agreed to sell the 1% of the registered capital
of the Target Company, which is legally and beneficially owned
by the Vendor (“Sale Capital”) for a total Consideration of
HK$34.874 million, which shall be settled issue of 1,215,630
new Shares to be allotted and issued by the Company to the
Vendor credited as fully paid for the purpose of the settlement
of the Consideration (the “Consideration Shares”). As
one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) for the Acquisition exceed 5% but
all of them are less than 25%, the Acquisition constitutes a
disclosable transaction of the Company and is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from
the Shareholders’ approval requirement set out in the GEM
Listing Rules.

The board (the “Board"”) of directors (“Directors”) of WS-SK
Target Group Limited (the “Company”) changed the board lot
size of the ordinary shares in the Company (the “Share(s)”)
for trading on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) from 1,200 Shares to 400 Shares with
effect from 9:00 a.m. on 22 August 2025.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EEMBHRE

Year ended 31 May
HES5AMBILEEE
RESULTS 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

£ 2025 F 2024 % 20235 20225 20214
RM’'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A+ Age A+ A+ AL
e ~< B2

<8 Ed= <0

Revenue from continuing REARFELEEBR
operations WA 31,555 30,681 30,301 21,287 21,073
Gross profit from continuing ~ KEHELLEHH
operations il 9,387 8,559 6,923 3,568 4,671
Profit before taxation from REFEEEEBH
continuing operations B 15 A% A 1,695 1,632 818 (1,609) (2,966)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(E8) 82 108 88 (1,923) (4,853)
— from continuing operations — 7 B 8 48 & ¥ 7% 481 493 311 (1,941) (3,642)
— from discontinued — REERILEEER
operations (399) (385) (223) 18 (1,211)

As at 31 May
R5H31H
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2025 2023

BEEREE 2025 F 20234

RM’000 RM'000

N A=
<R < B

Total assets BEBE 55,163 50,607 50,658 41,694 42,410
Total liabilities BERS 18,455 14,309 15,483 8,780 8,822
Net assets FEE 36,708 36,298 35,175 32,914 33,588
CAPITAL AND RESERVES  &&K fi#th

Total equity REAE 36,708 36,298 35,175 32,914 33,588
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